ESl

inTEST Corporation

—




ELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table contains certain selected financial data of inTEST and is qualified by the more detailed-Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report to Stockholders and should be read in con-
junction with the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and other
financial information included in this Annual Report to Stockholders.

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Consolidated Statement of Earnings Data: (in thousands, except per share data)
Net revenues $ 51,627  $87,651 $53,585 $36,058 $40,014
Gross margin 12,711 39,556 26,710 17,188 20,914
Operating income (loss) (14,689) 10,909 7,327 2,076 5,840
Net earnings (loss) (11,329) 6,379 6,133 1,058 4,223
Net earnings (loss) per common share
(1997 information is pro forma):
Basic (1.37) .78 76 14 53
Diluted (1.37) .75 74 .14 .54
Weighted average common shares outstanding
(1997 information is pro forma):
Basic 8,279 8,201 8,084 7,669 6,531
Diluted 8,279 8,470 8,266 7,822 6,697

As of December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Consolidated Bulance Sheet Duta: (in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7281 $ 5680 $12,047 $ 8,637 $12,138
Working capital 20,146 26,768 20,784 15,068 16,826
Toral assets 31,768 47,302 43,015 32,556 31,290
Long-term debt, less current portion 296 — 133 262 427
Total stockholders’ equity 27,204 38,398 31,458 25,062 21,037

|COMPANY PROFILE|

inTEST Corporation (Nasdaq®: INTT} is o leading independent designer, manufaciurer and
marketer of positioner and docking hardware products, temperature management systems and customized interface solutions that are
used by semiconductor manufacturers to perform. final testing of integrated circuits and waler prod‘ucﬂrs. These products are designed to
enable semiconductor manufacturers fo improve the efficiency of their IC fest processes and consequently, their profitability. Our end user

customers include Texas Instruments, ST Microelectronics, Agere Systems (formerly the Microelectronics Group of Lucent Technologies),

Philips ond Motorola. Our OEM customers include Teradyne, Cascadé Microtech, Electroglas, Tokyo Seimitsu, Agilent Technologies

(formerly Hewleit Packard), LTX, Analog Devices and Credence Systems’ ICE Division {formerly TMT).
Headquartered in Cherry Hifl, New Jersey, inTEST has more than 200 highly skilled and trained technical personnel. The Company
has manufacturing facilities in New Jersey, Massachusetts, California, the U.K. and Singapore. In addition, inTEST also has offices in

Japan and Germany, which provide design, sales, service end support, with additional support personnel in Arizona and Texas.
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Dear Stockholders,

2001 was a challenging year fo say the least. inTEST began the year having just experienced the greatest period of
growth the semiconductor industry has ever had, only fo plunge into the deepest downturn in industry history. Compounding
the normal cyclic nature of our business was the general global economic slowdown. These conditions combined to make it
almost impossible to accurately forecast when and at what rate the semiconductor business would recover and resume growth.
Consequently, we enacted a strategy of operating expense vigilance and cash preservation. Early in the year we implemented
a cost containment program that included head count reductions, salary freezes and oggressive conircls on operational
expenditures. As the business outlook worsened, we further tightened spending limits and instituted salary reductions worldwide.

Nevertheless, we have continued to develop new products, improve our manufacturing processes, and refine our sales
channels. During 2001, we have made “continuous improvement” our mantra for both the quality of our products and the serv-
ices we provide to our customers. During the year, each of our domestic divisions has worked to improve our responsiveness
to the increasing demands of our customers. We have implemented extensive internal programs that stress optimization of turn-
around time from purchase order to shipment, absolute on-time-delivery, zero defects shipped, and after-delivery performance
follow-up. We have also moved forward with our R&D efforts, having expanded our Intellectual Property base fo a fotal of 27

U.S. patents issued and 20 U.S. patents pending.

inTEST's sales and service groups have made commendable progress in satisfying the sometimes differing needs of both

our OEM and end user customers. Our OEM customers, who rep-
resent an increasingly significant portion of our business, include

the major manufacturers of semiconductor testers and handling

equipment in the United States, Europe and Asia. Our end-user’
customers, with whom we have developed strong long-term
relationships, consist of most semiconductor manufaciurers both

domestically and overseas.
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Shareholders

Our foreign subsidiaries in the U.K., Germany, Singapore and Japan continue to be a source of strength in defining our
global reach and capabilities, which are important atfributes to our customérs. Although they too had a difficult year, each has
emerged with their key personnel intact and new facilities that enhance our overall capacity for sales, design, manufacturing
and service.

| think it is worthwhile to note that although our worldwide workforce has made significant sacrifices in the form of
decreased compensation with commensurate increased demands on their time during the downturn, we have retained all of
our key operational people. This is a testament to their belief in the future of inTEST Corperation. | want to especially thank
them and their supportive families who also believe in our vision and mission.

Despite the difficulty of the business climate, we have kept true to our strategic vision of internal growth through improved
manufacturing processes and continued emphasis on new product development. We have also continued to assess possible
acquisition opportunities to fuel additional growth as the industry recovers. We have weathered the down-
turn with a clean, debtfree balance sheet. Although our industry has just experienced the
worst decline in its short history, one thing is certoin: the ever-growing semi-
conductor content in an increasing variety of products means increased
demand over the long term for semiconductors and the
equipment necessary for semiconductor manufacture and
test. We have positioned ourselves to be on the leading
edge of the coming upturn with the very best in facili-
ties, equipment and people. Our goal is, and always
will be, to exceed our customers’ expectations while

enhancing shareholder value.

Sincerely,

VY - A

Robert E. Matthiessen
President and CEO
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PART I:

. From time to time, we make written or oral "forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, including statements contained in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (including this
Report on Form 10-K), our annual report to stockholders and in other communications. These statements do not convey historical
information, but relate to predicted or potential future events, such as statements of our plans, strategies and intentions, or our future
performance or goals, and can often be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as "believes”, "expects"”, "intends",

"may", "will", "should" or "anticipates" or similar terminology. Investors and prospective investors are cautioned that such statements

are only projections. These statements involve risks and uncertainties and are based upon various assumptions. We discuss many of

these risks and uncertainties under the heading "Risks That Could Affect Future Results" in "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” below, and elsewhere in this Report. These risks, among others, could cause our
actual future results to differ materially from those described in our forward-looking statements. We are not obligated to update these

forward-looking statements, even though our situation may change in the future.
ftem 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
INTRODUCTION

We are a leading independent designer, manufacturer and marketer of manipulator and docking hardware products, temperature
management systems and tester interface products that are used by semiconductor manufacturers in conjunction with automatic test
equipment, or ATE, in the testing of integrated circuits, or ICs. Our high performance products are designed to enable semiconductor
manufacturers to improve the efficiency of their IC test processes and, consequently, their profitability. We supply our products
worldwide to major semiconductor manufacturers directly and through leading ATE manufacturers. Our customers include Texas
Instruments, ST Microelectronics, Agere Systems (formerly the Microelectronics Group of Lucent Technologies), Philips, Motorola,
Teradyne, Cascade Microtech, Electroglas, Tokyo Seimitsu, Agilent Technologies (formerly Hewlett Packard), LTX, Analog Devices
and Credence Systems' ICE Division (formerly TMT).

We were incorporated in New Jersey in 1981 and reincorporated in Delaware in April 1997. We established inTEST Limited in the
U.K. in 1985, inTEST Kabushiki Kaisha (inTEST K.K.) in Japan in 1987, inTEST PTE, Limited in Singapore in 1990 and inTEST
GmbH in Germany in 2000. inTEST Limited designs, manufactures, markets and provides technical support for our products
principally in Europe. inTEST K.K. acts as a liaison office with Japanese ATE manufacturers, and markets and provides technical
support for our products in Japan. inTEST PTE, Limited designs, manufactures, markets and provides technical support to customers
in Southeast Asia. inTEST GmbH provides sales and service in continental Europe for temperature management systems as well as
sales and service for manipulator, docking hardware and tester interface products for selected accounts. In 1997, we completed our
initial public offering. In 1998, we acquired all of the stock of TestDesign Corporation, which expanded our capabilities in the design,
manufacture and marketing of tester interface products. On March 9, 2000, we acquired all of the stock of Temptronic Corporation, a
.designer, manufacturer and marketer of high-performance temperature management systems used in the testing of ICs, printed circuit
boards and other subassemblies. ' ’

INDUSTRY
Overview

The semiconductor market has been characterized by rapid technological change, wide fluctuations in demand and shortening product
life cycles. Designers and manufacturers of a variety of electronic and industrial products, such as cell phones, telecom and datacom
systems, Internet access devices, computers and consumer electronics, require increasingly complex ICs to provide improved end-
product performance demanded by their customers.

Semiconductor manufacturers generally compete based on product performance and price. We believe that testing costs represent a
significant portion of the total cost of manufacturing ICs. As product life cycles shorten, semiconductor manufacturers are under more
pressure to maximize production yields and reduce testing costs. At the same time, the growing complexity of ICs has increased the
difficulty of maximizing test yields. In order to address these market trends, semiconductor manufacturers strive for more effective
utilization of ATE, smaller test areas and increased wafer level testing.

The demand for new ATE and related equipment depends upon several factors, including the demand for products that incorporate
ICs, the increasing complexity of ICs and the emergence of new IC design, production and packaging technologies. Some of the
newer IC technologies include the use of 300 mm wafers in production, system-on-a-chip, or SOC, where digital, analog and memory
functions are combined on a single IC, and chip scale packaging. As a result of these and other advances, semiconductor
manufacturers may require additional ATE not only to handle increases in production but also to handie more sophisticated testing
requirements of [Cs. '




IC Test Process

Semiconductor manufacturers typically produce ICs in multiples of several hundred on a silicon wafer which is later separated or
"diced" into individual ICs. Extended leads are then attached to the individual ICs, for later connection to other electrical components,
before the ICs are put in a plastic, ceramic or other protective housing. This process step is calied "packaging." Wafers are tested
before being diced and packaged, to ensure that only properly functioning ICs are packaged. This testing step has several names
including "front-end test," "wafer test" or "wafer probe." In front-end test, a piece of equipment known as a wafer prober
automatically positions the wafer under a "test head," which connects electrically to a test system. Once the good ICs have been
identified, they are packaged. The packaged IC also requires testing, called "back-end test,” to determine if it meets design and
performance specifications. Packaged ICs are placed into a machine called a handler, which then plugs the packaged ICs into an
environmentally-controtled test head, which includes a test socket, for testing.

Testers range in price from approximately $560,000 to over $3.0 million each, depending primarily on the complexity of the IC to be
tested and the number of test heads, typically one or two, with which each tester is configured. Probers and handlers range in price
from approximately $100,000 to $500,000. A typical test floor of a large semiconductor manufacturer may have 100 test heads and
100 probers or 250 handiers supplied by various vendors for use at any one time.

Test head manipulators, also referred to as positioners, facilitate the movement of the test head to the wafer prober in front-end test,

. and to the handler in back-end test. Docking hardware connects the test head to the wafer prober and handler. Tester interface products
provide the electrical connection between the test head and the wafer or packaged IC. Traditionally, temperature management
products are used in back-end test to allow a manufacturer to test packaged ICs under the extreme temperature conditions in which the
IC may be required to operate. However, we believe that temperature-controlled testing will be an increasingly important part of front-
end wafer testing as the demand for front-end testing grows.

Trends in IC Testing

Although the demand for ICs and ATE has been experiencing a severe cyclical downturn, we believe that when the cycle reverses and
demand for ICs increases, the ATE industry will again be required to assist IC manufacturers not only to identify unacceptable
products, but also to perform the IC test in the most efficient and cost-effective manner possible. To provide testing equipment that
can help manufacturers meet this goal, the ATE industry must address the following issues:

Change in Technology. Currently, most semiconductor manufacturers use 150 mm and 200 mm wafer technology. In order to increase
throughput and lower IC cost, semiconductor manufacturers will need to add 300 mm wafer production capability as existing 150mm
and 200mm production capacity becomes more fully utilized. In addition, end-user applications are demanding ICs with increasingly
higher performance, greater speeds, and smaller sizes. ICs that meet these higher standards are more complex and dense. SOC designs
are likely to have increasing demand in the future. These technology trends have significant implications for the IC testing process,
including: .

the need for more complex, larger and heavier test heads;
higher pin densities;

increasing test speeds; and

a new generation of testers for SOC and other technologies.

® 0 @ o

Need for Plug-Compatibility and Integration. Semiconductor manufacturers need test methodologies that will perform increasingly
complex tests while lowering the overall cost of testing. This can require combining ATE manufactured by various companies into
optimally performing systems. Semiconductor manufacturers have to work closely with various test hardware, software, interface and
component vendors to resolve design and compatibility issues in order to make these vendors' products plug-compatible with test
equipment manufactured by other vendors.

Testing under Extreme Conditions. ICs will have to perform across a wider spectrum of temperature and environmental conditions
than ever before because.of the growing complexity of products in which they are deployed. Temperature testing will likely find an
increasing role in front-end, wafer level testing. Creating a uniform thermal profile over much larger wafer areas represents a
significant engineering and design challenge for ATE manufacturers. ‘

Demand for Higher Levels of Technical Support. As IC testing becomes more complex, semiconductor manufacturers are increasingly
demanding higher levels of technical support on a routine basis. ATE manufacturers must commit greater resources to technical
support in order to develop close working relationships with their customers. This level of suppost also requires close proximity of
service and support centers to customers' facilities.

Cost Reduction through Increased Front-End Testing. As the cost of testing ICs increases, semiconductor manufacturers will continue
to look for ways to streamline the testing process to make it more cost-effective. We believe that this factor will lead to more front-
end, wafer level testing.




OUR SCLUTICNS

We focus our development efforts on designing and producing high quality products that provide superior performance and cost-
effectiveness. We seek to address each manufacturer's individual needs through innovative and customized designs, use of the best
materials available, quality manufacturing practices and personalized service. We design solutions to overcome the evolving
challenges facing the ATE industry by providing the following advantages:

Scalable, Universal, High Performance Interface Technology. Our universal test head manipulators provide six degrees of motion
freedom to enable a high degree of flexibility with the minimum amount of effort. As a result, our products can be used in virtually
any test setting. Our manipulators have kept pace with the rapidly increasing size of test heads, which can weigh up to 3,000 pounds
and which will become larger and heavier as the required level of testing sophistication increases. Our docking hardware offers precise
control over the connection to test sockets, probing assemblies and interface boards, reducing downtime and minimizing costly
damage to fragile components. We believe that these characteristics will gain even more significance as testing becomes more
complicated. :

Compatibility and Integration. A hallmark of our products has been, and continues to be, compatibility with a wide varlety of ATE.
Our universal manipulators can handle test heads produced by different manufacturers. We also design and manufacture docking
hardware that can be used with otherwise incompatible ATE. We believe this integrated approach to ATE facilitates smooth
changeover from one tester to another, longer lives for interface components, better test results and lower overall test costs.

Wafer Level Testing. Semiconductor manufacturers use our redesigned ThermoChuck® products for front-end temperature stress
screening at the wafer level. This can provide significant cost savings from early identification of defective ICs that will not perform at
specified temperatures thereby eliminating the costs of packaging and testing these defective ICs. ThermoChuck® products are
capable of handling any size wafer, including a 300 mm wafer, for thermal test without causing the wafer distortion that can occur as
temperature changes are introduced.

Worldwide Customer Service and Support. We have long recognized the need to maintain a physical presence near our customers'
facilities. We have manufacturing facilities in New Jersey, Massachusetts, California, the U.K. and Singapore, and we provide service
to our customers from 12 sales and service offices in the U.S., the UK., Japan, Singapore and Germany. Our engineers are easily
accessible to, and can work directly with, most of our customers from the time we begin developing our initial proposal through the
delivery, installation and use of the product by our customer. In this way, we are able to develop and maintain close relationships with
our Customers.

OUR STRATEGY

Although demand for ICs and ATE has been experiencing a severe cyclical downturn, and much of our effort has been focused on
reducing costs and conserving cash until the cycle reverses, we remain committed to our goal of being recognized in our industry as
the designer and manufacturer of the highest quality products in our markets and to become a supplier for all of our customers' ATE
needs, other than probers, handlers and testers. Our strategies to achieve these goals include the following: .

Providing Technologically Advanced Solutions. We are committed to designing and producing only the highest quality products which
incorporate innovative designs to achieve optimal cost-effectiveness and functionality for each customer's particular situation. Cur
engineering and design staff are continually engaged in developing new and improved products and manufacturing processes.

Leveraging our Strong Customer Relationships. Our technical personnel work closely with ATE manufacturers to design tester
interface and docking hardware that are compatible with their ATE. As a result, we are often privy to proprietary technical data and
information about these manufacturers' products. We believe that because we do not compete with ATE manufacturers in the prober,
handler and tester markets, we have been able to establish strong collaborative relationships with these manufacturers that enable us to
develop ancillary ATE products on an accelerated basis.

Continuing our International Expansion. Our existing and potential customers are concentrated in certain regions throughout the
world. We believe that we must maintain a presence in the markets in which our customers operate. We currently have offices in the
U.S., the U.K,, Japan, Singapore and Germany.

-Pursuing Synergistic Acquisitions. A key element of our growth strategy is to acquire businesses, technologies or products that are
complementary to our current product offerings. Our TestDesign and Temptronic acquisitions have expanded our line of product
offerings and given us the opportunity to market a broader range of products to our customer base. We expect to make acquisitions
that wiil further expand our product lines, enabling us to become a single source supplier to the test floor for a complete selection of
equipment compatible with testers, probers and handlers of all manufacturers.




QOUR PRODUCTS

We design and manufacture manipulators, docking hardware, temperature management systems and tester interface products, all of
which are designed to improve the utilization and performance of ATE used by semiconductor manufacturers in the testing of ICs.
Semiconductor manufacturers mainly use our primary lines of manipulators and docking hardware during back-end testing of
specialized packaged ICs. They use our temperature management systems and tester interface products in both front-end and back-end
testing of ICs. These ICs include microprocessors, digital signal processing chips, application specific ICs and specialized memory
ICs, and are used primarily in the automotive, computer, consumer products and telecommunications industries. We custom design
most of our products for each customer's particular combination of ATE. We have designed over 5,000 models, each of which is
mechanically different. These models are designed to facilitate the use of one or more of over 175 different test heads with one or
more of over 30 probers or 300 handlers.

Manipulator-Products

Our manipulator products consists of the in2® and in2 Pro test head positioners, which are free-standing universal manipulators.
Universal manipulators can hold a variety of test heads and enable an operator to reposition a test head for alternate use with any one
of several probers or handlers on a test floor. The in2® and in2 Pro differ from universal manipulators manufactured by our
competitors by our innovative, patented floating-head design. This design permits a test head weighing up to 3,600 pounds to be held
in an effectively weightless state, so it can be moved manually or, in-the case of the in2 Pro, with optional powered assistance, up or
down, right or left, forward or backward and rotated around each axis (known as six degrees of motion freedom) by an operator using
a modest amount of force. The same design features enable the operator to dock the test interface board without causing inadvertent
damage to the fragile electrical contacts. As a result, after testing a particular production lot of ICs, the operator can quickly and easily
disconnect a test head held in an in2® or in2 Pro manipulator and equipped with our docking hardware and dock it to another handler
for testing either a subsequent lot of the same packaged IC or to test a different IC. in2® and in2 Pro manipulators range in price from
approximately $12,800 to $159,000.

Docking Hardware Products

Our docking hardware products ensure proper alignment of the delicate interface between the test head's interface board and the
prober's probing assembly or the handler’s test socket as they are brought together, or "docked.” A simple cam action docks and locks
the test head to the prober or handler, thus eliminating motion of the test head relative to the prober or handler. This minimizes
deterioration of the interface boards, test sockets and probing assemblies which is caused by the constant vibration during testing. Our
docking hardware products are used primarily with floating-head universal manipulators when maximum mobility and inter-
changeability of handlers between test heads is required. By using our docking hardware products, semi- conductor manufacturers can
achieve cost savings through improved ATE utilization, improved accuracy and integrity of test results, and reduced repairs and

. replacements of expensive ATE interface products.

Cur docking hardware products differ from those offered by competing ATE manufacturers by our ability to make various competing
brands of test heads compatible with various brands of probers and handlers used by a semiconductor manufacturer by only changing
interface boards. This is called "plug-compatibility.” Plug-compatibility enables incréased flexibility and utilization of test heads,
probers and handlers purchased from various manufacturers. We believe that because we do not compete with ATE manufacturers in
the sale of probers, handlers or testers, ATE manufacturers are willing to provide us with the information that is integral to the de51gn
of plug-compatible products. Cur docking hardware products range in price from approximately $2,000 to $25,000.

Temperature Management Systems

Cur temperature management systems enable a manufacturer to test a semiconductor wafer or IC over the exireme and variable
temperature conditions that can occur in the actual use of the electronic device containing the ICs. :

ThermoChuck® Products: Our ThermoChuck® precision vacuum platform assemblies quickly change and stabilize the temperature of
semiconductor wafers during testing without removing the wafer from its testing environment. Such temperatures can range from as
iow as -65° Celsius to as high as +400° Celsius. ThermoChucks® are incorporated into wafer prober equipment for laboratory analysis
and for in-line production testing of semiconductor wafers. ThermoChuck® products range in price from approximately $14,000 to
$75,000.

ThermoStream® Products: Our ThermoStream® stand-alone temperature management systems use a temperature-controlled air
stream to rapidly change and stabilize the temperature of packaged ICs and printed circuit boards. ThermoStream® products provide a
source of heated and cooled air which can be directed over the component or device under test. These systems are capable of
controlling temperatures to within 0.1° Celsius over a range of -75° Celsius to as high as +225° Celsius within 1.0° Celsius of accuracy.
Traditionally, our customers used ThermoStream® products primarily in engineering, quality assurance and small-run manufacturing
environments. However, increasingly, our customers use ThermoStream® products in longer-run production applications.
ThermoStream® products range in price from approximately $4,500 to $40,000C.
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Other Temperature Management Products: We also manufacture ancillary temperature management products including temperature-
controlled contact probes, temperature-controlled enclosures, and precision temperature platforms. Recent developments in wireless
communications have resulted in the mounting of wireless transmitters outdoors to reduce transinission [ine problems. As a result,

. these transmitters are exposed to extreme temperature variations and require testing over-the full range of temperature exposure that
will be encountered. Historically, the standard approach to this type of testing has been to use conventional thermal chambers, which
can require removing equipment during testing and potentially cause damage to the sensitive microwave cables or create erroneous
measurements. Our other temperature management products can be used to provide a closed, temperature-controlled environment for
temperature testing of high frequency transmitters and receivers without the need for removal during testing, eliminating the risk of
damage due to interruption of the test.

Tester Interface Products

Tester interface products provide the electrical connections between the tester and the wafer prober or IC handler to carry the electrical
signals between the tester and the probe card on the prober or the test socket on the handler. Our designs optimize the integrity of the
transmitted signal which increases the accuracy of the test data. Therefore, our tester interface products can be used with high speed,
high frequency, digital or mixed signal interfaces used in testing more complex ICs. Because our tester interface products enable the
tester to provide more reliable yield data, our interfaces may also reduce IC production costs. We offer over 200 different types of
tester interface models that we custom designed for our customers' specific applications. These products range in price from $6,000 to
$51,000.

Integrated Products

In 2001, we introduced our integrated solutions product group. The primary focus of this new group is to integrate products from one
or more of our product segments into value-added testing solutions. We can design and integrate a complete electro-mechanical
system for probe and final test applications, including manipulator, docking system, tester interface and temperature control
components. Integrated products range in price from $65,000 to $140,000.

Financial Information About Product Segments and Geographic Areas

Please refer to Note 3 of our consolidated financial statements included in this Report for additional data regarding each of our product
segments and revenues attributable to foreign countries.

MARKETING, SALES AND CUSTOMER SUPPORT

We market and sell our products in all markets where the manufacture of semiconductors occurs. North American and European
semiconductor manufacturers have located most of their back-end factories in Southeast Asia. The front-end wafer fabrication plants
of U.S. semiconductor manufacturers are primarily in the U.S. Likewise, European, Taiwanese, South Korean and Japanese
semiconductor manufacturers generally have located their wafer fabrication plants in their respective countries.

Manipulator, Docking Hardware and Tester Interface Products: In North America, we sell to semiconductor manufacturers
principally through independent, commissioned sales representatives. North American sales representatives also coordinate product
installation and support with our technical staff and participate in trade shows.

Our regional and account managers handle sales to ATE manufacturers and are responsible for a portfolio of customer accounts and
for managing certain independent sales representatives. In addition, our account managers are responsible for pricing, quotations,
proposals and transaction negotiations, and they assist with applications engineering and custom product design. Technical support is
provided to North American customers and independent sales representatives by employees based in New Jersey, California, Texas
and Arizona.

In Europe and Japan, we sell to semiconductor and ATE manufacturers through our account managers. In China, Hong Kong,
Malaysia, the Philippines, South Korea, Taiwan and Thailand, we sell through independent sales representatives. International sales
representatives are responsible for sales, installation, support and trade show participation in their geographic market areas.

Temperature Management Systems: Sales to ATE manufacturers are handled directly by our own sales force. Sales to semiconductor
manufacturers in the U.S. are handled through independent sales representative organizations. In Asia, our sales to semiconductor
manufacturers are handled through distributors. In Europe, sales managers at our offices in Germany and the U.K., as well as regional
distributors, sell direct to semiconductor manufacturers. Our distributors represent us in 30 countries. We visit our distributors
regularly and have trained them to sell and service all of our temperature management products.




CUSTOMERS

We market all of our products to semiconductor manufacturers and ATE manufacturers. In the case of temperature management
products, we also market our products to independent testers of semiconductors, manufacturers of electronic products, and
semiconductor research facilities. Qur customers use our products principally in production testing, although our ThermoStream®
products traditionally have been used largely in engineering development and quality assurance. We believe that we sell to most major
semiconductor manufacturers in the world.

Our largest customers include:

Semiconductor Manufacturers ATE Manufacturers
Texas Instruments Agilent Technologies (formerly Hewlett Packard)
ST Microelectronics Cascade Microtech
Boeing Satellite Systems Teradyne, Inc.
Agere Systems (formerly the Microelectronics Group of Electroglas
Lucent Technologies) Analog Devices

MANUFACTURING AND SUPPLY

Our principal manufacturing operations consist of assembly and testing at our facilities in New Jersey, Massachusetts, California, the
U.K,, and Singapore. By maintaining manufacturing facilities and technical support in geographic markets where most of our
customers are located, we believe that we are able to respond more quickly and effectively to our customers' needs. During the first
quarter of 2001, we expanded our Thame, U.K. operation. During the second quarier of 2001, we moved both our Temptronic
operation in Massachusetts and our Singapore operation to larger facilities

We assemble most of our products from a combination of standard components and custom parts that have been fabricated to our
specifications by either third party manufacturers or our own fabrication operations in New Jersey, California and the U.K. Our
practice is to use the highest quality raw materials and components in our products. The primary raw materials used in fabricated parts
are all widely available. We purchase substantially all of our components from muitiple suppliers. Although we purchase certain raw
materials and components from single suppliers, we believe that all materials and components are available in adequate amounts from
other sources.

We conduct inspections of incoming raw materials, fabricated parts and components using sophisticated measurement equipment.
This includes testing with coordinate measuring machines in New Jersey, Massachusetts, the U.K. and Singapore to ensure that
products with critical dimensions meet our specifications. We have designed our inspection standards to comply with applicable MIL
specifications and ANSI standards. We recently obtained ISO 9001 certification at our New Jersey facility and are in the process of
applying for similar certification for our California and Massachusetts operations.

ENGINEERING AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Our success depends on our ability to provide our customers with products and solutions that are well engineered, and to design those
products and solutions before, or at least no later than, our competitors. As of December 31, 2001, we employed a total of 42
engineers, who were engaged full time in engineering and product development. OQur practice in many cases is to assign engineers to
work with specific customers, thereby enabling us to develop the relationships and free exchange of information that is most
conducive to successfui product development and enhancement. In addition, some of our engineers are assigned to new product
research and development and have worked on such projects as the redesign of the ThermoChuck® and the development of several
new types of universal manipulators.

Since most of our products are customized, we consider substantiaily all of cur engineering activities to be engineering and product
development. We spent approximately $6.1 million in 2001, $6.6 million in 2000, and $4.9 million in 1999 on engineering and
product development.

PATENTS AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

As of December 31, 2001, we held 27 U.S. patents and had pending 20 U.S. patent applications covering various aspects of our
technology. Gur U.S. issued paients will expire at various times beginning in 2602 and extending through 2018. We also hold foreign
patents and file foreign patent applications, in each case derived from our U.S. patents, to the extent management deems appropriate.

Our policy is to protect our technology by filing patent applications for the technologies that we consider important to our business.
We aiso rely on trade secrets and unpatentable know-how to protect our proprietary rights. It is our practice to require, as a condition
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of permanent employment, that all of our employees agree to assign to us all rights to inventions or other discoveries relating to ‘our
business made while employed by us. In addition, all employees agree not to disclose any private or confidential information relating
to our technology or intellectual property.

COMPETITICN

QOur competitors include independent manufacturers, ATE manufacturers and, to a lesser extent, semiconductor manufacturers' in-
house ATE interface groups. Competitive factors in our market include product performance, price, functionality, reliability, customer
service, applications support, and timely product delivery. We believe that our Jong-term relationships with the industry's leading
semiconductor manufacturers and other customers, and our commitment to and reputation for providing high quality products are
important elements in our ability to compete effectively in all of our markets.

The independent manufacturers of docking hardware and manipulators that compete with us include Reid-Ashman Manufacturing and
Microhandling GmbH, both of which manufacture docking hardware and manipulators. The ATE manufacturers that compete with us
in the sale of docking hardware and universal manipulators include Credence Systems, LTX, Schlumberger and Teradyne, who are
also our customess. o

Our principal competitors for temperature management products are Thermonics, Trio-Tech International and ERS Elektronik GmbH.
The independent manufacturers of tester interface products that compete with us include Cerprobe, a division of Kulicke & Soffa,
Synergetix, a division of IDI, and Xandex. ATE manufacturers that compete with us in the sale of tester interface products include
Credence Systems, L'TX and Teradyne.

BACKLOG

At December 31, 2001, our backlog of unfilled orders for all products was approximately $10.6 million compared with approximately
$22.3 million at December 31, 2000. Our backlog includes customer purchase orders which we have accepted, substantially all of
which we expect to deliver in the current fiscal year. While backlog is calculated on the basis of firm purchase orders, a customer may
cancel an order or accelerate or postpone currently scheduled delivery dates. As a result, our backlog at a particular date is not
necessarily indicative of sales for any future period. »

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2001, we had 229 full time employees, including 100 in manufacturing operations, 99 in customer
support/operations and 30 in administration. Substantially all of our key employees are highly skilled and trained technical personnel.
None of our employees is represented by a labor union, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe that our
relationship with our employees is very good.

Item 2: PROPERTIES

At December 31, 2001, we leased 11 facilities worldwidé. During the first quarter of 2001, we expanded our Thame, U.K. operation.
We moved both our Temptronic operation in Massachusetts and our Singapore operation to larger facilities during the second quarter
of 2001. We believe that additional space to meet our current and foreseeable future needs is readily available.

The following chart provides information regarding each of our principal facilities which we occupied at December 31, 2001.

Approx.
Lease Square
Location Expiration Footage Principal Uses
Cherry Hill, NJ 9/10 - 121,700 . Corporate headquarters and design, manufacturing, service
and sales -- manipulator and docking hardware products.
Sharon, MA 2/11 62,400 Design, manufacturing, service and sales -- temperature
management systems.
Sunnyvale, CA 12/04 18,300 - Design, manufacturing, service and sales -- tester interface

products




Item 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are a party to legal proceedings. We are not currently involved in any material legal proceedings the resolution
of which could have a material effect on our business, our financial position or our results of operations. On December 15, 2000,
however, we filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware against Credence Systems Corporation claiming
infringement of our U.S. patent number 4,589,815 and seeking damages and injunctive relief. Since that time, we commenced the
process of discovery, which process is ongoing, and through which we will quantify our damages. We do not believe that this action
will have a material effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4: SUBMISSIONS OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted 1o a vote during the fourth quarter of 2001.

PART Ii:

ftem 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "INTT." The following table sets forth the high and low
sale prices of our common stock, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market, for the periods indicated. Sale prices have been rounded.
to the nearest full cent.

Sales Price
High Low

2000

FIrst QUATTET ...vevvveirverreiireecee it ceeeseeesreererereesressseesseesssnsnns $26.25 $16.44
Second QUATTET.......cccooereeirnrrteririe e 2450 1400
Third QUAarter.......ccccooveeeeiiiieniencere e 18.88 8.00
Fourth QUArter.......ccccoveveveiriereree e 11.13 5.00
2001

First QUATTET ....oovvererereriicreniierererreieseeeseeeneeeseesanesnresarenas $10.75 $ 6.00
Second QUAITET......c.ccciierre i rererre et eeseee s b essenessrenrenas 9.00 5.38
Third QUATLET......ccoceveiiriirenniivre e cseeeeeeecteceeeeeeressrsas 6.45 2.88
FOUrth QUAIET ...ooveviee et s een e sieeseessnnren s 5.15 2.44

On March 15, 2002, the closing price for our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market was $5.41. As of March 15,
2002, we had 8,685,205 shares outstanding that were held of record by approximately 1,000 sharekolders.

We have not paid dividends on our common stock since our initial public offering, and we do not plan to pay cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Our current policy is to retain any future earnings for reinvestment in the operation and expansion of our business,
including possible acquisitions of other businesses, technologies or products. Payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion
of our board of directors. In addition, our current credit agreement prohibits us from paying cash dividends without the lender’s prior
consent.
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Item 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table contains certain selected consolidated financial data of inTEST and is qualified by the more detailed Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction
with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the other financial information
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 199%9 1998 1997

‘(In thousands, except per share data)

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

INEL FEVEIMUES. ....cveviieiieiiieiesres e e rsee bt st aiaesiasesssesreeesseeanassensas $51,627 $87,651 $53,585 $36,058 $40,014
Gross margin.......c.....c.... ettt et n ettt n s enens 12,711 39,556 26,710 17,188 20,914
Cperating inCOmMe (I0SS) ...vvvvevrerriereiiirrene e ere e (14,689) 10,909 7,327 2,076 5,840
Net earnings (108S) - .coeveverereererinereneerre e se et e (11,329) 6,379 6,133 1,058 4,223

Net earnings (loss) per common share (1997 information
is pro forma):
BaSIC ..ttt e (1.37) 78 .76 14 55
DI, ...cooeeveiiriiriii e (1.37) 75 74 .14 S4
Weighted average common shares outstanding (1997
information is pro forma) :
BASIC....ceeeueeeerern ettt et s e st s bbb r s nen 8,279 8,201 8,084 7,669 6,531

F ) (37T OO R PR 8,279 8,470 8,266 7,822 6,697
As of December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands)
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents..............o.ccoeverieieiiecccceceiee e $ 7,281 $5,680 $12,047 $8,637 $12,138
WOrking Capital.......cccoeevivrinrniecenennnernr et 20,146 26,768 20,784 15,068 16,826
TO1Al ASSELS vveueeevceeerienterrirrere sttt et b et esras b s 31,768 47,302 43,015 32,556 31,290
Long-term debt, less current portion............ e ’ 296 - 133 262 427
Total Stockholders' EQUILY .......cccevererreiriirrstse s cneenrnines 27,204 38,398 31458 25,062 21,037

The 1997 net earnings per common share and weighted average share data are presented on a pro forma basis to reflect our results as if
we had been taxed as a C corporation for all of 1997 and as if we had acquired our minority interests in three foreign subsidiaries on
January 1, 1997, rather than on June 20, 1997, the actual date of acquisition. »

The selected financial data gives retroactive effect to our merger with Temptronic Corporation on March 9, 2000. The merger was
accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method of accounting.

Item 7: MIANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSICN AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Overview

Our business and results of operations are substantially dependent upon the demand for ATE by semiconductor manufacturers and
companies that specialize in the testing of ICs. Demand for ATE is driven by semiconductor manufacturers that are opening new, or
expanding existing, semiconductor. fabrication facilities or upgrading existing equipment, which in turn is dependent upon the current
and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and products incorporating semiconductors. The semiconductor industry has been
highly cyclical with recurring periods of oversupply, which often have a severe impact on the semiconductor industry's demand for
ATE, including the products we manufacture. This cyclicality has been clearly demonstrated during the past six years, with downward
~ cycles in 1996, 1598 and 2001 and up cycles in 1997 and 1999-2000.
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The most recent downturn, which began during the fourth quarter of 2000, is the most severe downturn the ATE industry has ever
experienced. Our consolidated quarterly net revenues have declined from a peak of $24.5 million for the quarter ended September 30,
2000 to $7.4 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2001, a decline of approximately 70%. The decrease we have experienced in
net revenues during 2001 is comparable to the peak to trough differences being experienced by most of the companies in our industry.
The approximate peak to trough percentage decline in quarterly net revenues by product segment is 92% in the tester interface
segment, 75% in the manipulator/docking hardware segment and 51% in the temperature management segment. We believe the larger
percentage declines in the net revenues of our tester interface segment are primarily due to the fact that these product sales are driven
predominantly by semiconductor manufacturers' additions to production capacity, which essentially ceased during 2001. We believe
the smaller percentage decline in the net revenues of our temperature management segment are the result of demand for certain
products of this segment used in the research and product development projects of semiconductor manufacturers, which have not
declined significantiy during 2001.

Our net new orders booked ("bookings") for 2001 were $42.6 million compared to $98.1 million for 2000, a decline of $55.5 million
or 57%. Cur consolidated quarterly bookings have declined from a peak of $26.5 million for the guarter ended September 30, 2000 to
$6.1 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, a decline of approximately 77%. The peak to trough percentage decline in
quarterly bookings by product segment is consistent with the declines in net revenues discussed above. In addition to the decline in our
bookings, many of cur customers delayed shipments of previously ordered products until 2002 or cancelied their orders. As a result,
our backlog declined from $22.3 million at December 31, 2000 to $10.6 million at December 31, 2001. Bookings for the quarter ended
December 31, 2001 were $6.3 million, a 4% increase from the prior quarter and the first sequential quarterly increase in five quarters.
The current industry consensus is that a recovery will not occur until the second half of 2002, and we see nothing in our business to
contradict this assessment. We cannot be sure as to the length and depth of this current downturn or when the next cyclical growth
phase wiil occur or the rate at which it will accelerate.

In response to the severe downturn, we implemented significant cost containment initiatives during 2001 to reduce operating losses
and preserve cash. These initiatives were completed in several stages as the magnitude of the downturn became more apparent
throughout 2001. The most significant cost reduction was in personnel, where we reduced headcount by 38% or 144 people. In
addition, we implemented a temporary 10% reduction in compensation for all worldwide employees as well as a temporary
elimination of company contributions to retirement plans for all domestic employees. Significant reductions were also made in
corporate iravel, advertising, professional services and supplies. The result of our cost containment efforts is reflected in the level of
operating expenses, which declined from $7.3 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2000 to $4.5 million for the quarter ended
December 31, 2001. The goal of these initiatives was to reduce fixed operating costs to a level which, based on current revenue
projections, would allow us to maintain our present level of cash while still continuing our research and development programs and
positioning ourselves such that, when the market improves, we are able to be a prime supplier for both new and existing technologies
developed by our customers. However, given the uncertainty of the continued severity of the industry downturn, we cannot be certain
that the actions we have taken to date will be sufficient for us to accomplish this goal.

We sell our products to both semiconductor manufacturers (end user sales) and to ATE manufacturers (OEM sales) who ultimately
resell our equipment with theirs to semiconductor manufacturers. The mix of customers during any given period will affect our gross
margin due to differing sales discounts and commissions. Historically, the majority of our manipulator, docking hardware and tester
interface product sales have been made directly to semiconductor manufacturers, with sales to these end users typically in the range of
65% to 75% of our net revenues. However, since the beginning of 2000, many semiconductor manufacturers have begun to show a
preference for purchasing from a single source the various components of the ATE (excluding temperature management systems) that
they need. Typically, this source is the tester manufacturer, who manufacturers the largest and most expensive components of the ATE
system. As evidence of this trend, our OEM sales as a percentage of net revenues for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and
2001 were 33%, 41% and 54%, respectively, for manipulator/docking hardware products and 21%, 42% and 70%, respectively, for
tester interface products. These increases in OEM sales as a percentage of net revenues in these two segments have been offset by a
decrease in OEM sales in our temperature management segment, which decreased for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001
from 45% to 32%, respectively. We anticipate that OEM sales as a percentage of net revenues may continue to increase in the future
for our manipulator/docking hardware and tester interface product segments. The impact of this increase in OEM sales as a percentage
of net revenues is a reduction in our gross margin, as OEM sales have a more significant discount than end user sales. Our current net
operating margins on most OEM sales for these product segments, however, are only slightly less than margins on end user sales
because of the payment of third party sales commissions on most end user sales. We also expect to continue to experience demands
from our OEM customers’ supply line management groups to reduce our sales prices to them. This continued price pressure may have
the ultimate effect of reducing our gross and operating margins if we cannot reduce our manufacturing and operating costs.

We believe that purchases of most of our products are typically made from the semiconductor manufacturers’ capital expenditure
budgets. Certain portions of our business, however, are generally less dependent upon the capital expenditure budgets of the end users.
For example, purchases of certain related ATE interface products, such as sockets and interface boards, which must be replaced
periodically, are typicaily made from the end users' operating budgets. In addition, purchases of certain of our products, such as
docking hardware, for the purpose of upgrading, or to improve the utilization, performance and efficiency of, existing ATE tend to be
counter cyclical to sales of new ATE. Moreover, we believe a portion of our sales of temperature management products results from
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the increasing need for temperature testing of circuit boards and specialized components that do not have the design or quantity to be
tested in a handler. We believe that this business is less cyclical thannew ATE sales. However, during the current downward cycle we
have seen our customers' orders for these types of products decline as much, or in some cases, more than the other products we offer
as compared with. prior periods of reduced capital spending for ATE. We attribute this in part to reductions in our customers' operating
budgets combined with significant excess capacity that we believe exists throughout the industry. We believe that much of this excess
capacity is the result of capital equipment purchases made during the recent, prolonged expansion experienced by the industry, and
therefore, this newer equipment does not need to be upgraded or improved.

Please refer to the section entitled "Risks That Could Affect Future Results" below for a discussion of other important factors that
could cause our results to differ materially from our prior results or those expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements.

Resuilts of Operations

All of our products are used by semiconductor manufacturers in conjunction with ATE in the testing of ICs. Consequently, the results
of operations for each product segment are generally affected by the same factors. Separate discussions and analyses for each product
segment would be repetitive and obscure any unique factors that affected the results of operations of our different product segments.
The discussion and analysis that follows, therefore, is presented on a consolidated basis for the company as a whole and includes
discussion of factors unique to each product segment where significant to an understanding of such business.

Year Ended December 31 . 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31,-2000

Net Revenues. Net revenues were $51.6 million for 2001 compared to $87.7 million for 2000, a decrease of $36.1 million or 41%.
While the manipulator/docking hardware and tester interface segments' net revenues decreased $19.6 million or 49% and $8.7 million
or 59%, respectively, during 2001 as compared to 2000, the net revenues for the temperature management segment decreased by only
$7.8 million or 23% in 2001 as compared to 2000. We believe that the decrease in net revenues for all of our product segments reflects
the severe cyclical downturn in demand for ATE in 2001 as compared to 2000. However, we attribute the smaller percentage decrease
in the net revenues of our temperature management segment to continued demand for our Thermostream® products which partially
offset the effects of the current downturn on this product segment.

Gross Margin. Gross margin decreased to 25% in 2001 from 45% in 2000. We attribute the decrease in gross margin to several factors
including the $3.4 million write-down of obsolete inventory during 2001. This inventory write-down was made as a result of the -
continued downturn in our industry, which has caused items in our inventory to become obsolete. Excluding this write-down, gross
margin for 2001 was 31%. For our manipulator/docking hardware and tester interface segments, the decline is primarily the result of a
reduction in the absorption of fixed operating costs due to the significantly lower levels of revenue in 2001 compared to 2000 and an
increase in component material costs as a percentage of net revenues. The increase in component material costs as a percentage of net
revenues is primarily the result of an increase in OEM sales as a percentage of total sales, as previously discussed, as well as increases
in the cost of aluminum which is a significant raw material component used in these products. In addition, for our
manipulator/docking hardware segment, the decline in gross margin is also the result of increases in fixed operating costs due to
facility expansions in the U.S., the U.K. and Singapore. We believe this increased capacity adequately addressed the capacity
constraints that impacted product shipments during most of 2000. For temperature management products, the decline in gross margin
was the result of higher component material costs and increases in fixed operating costs. The higher fixed operating costs are due to a
facility expansion in early 2001, and were partially offset by a decrease in salaries due to headcount reductions in the operations area.

Selling Expense. Selling expense was $8.8 million for 2001 compared to $11.7 million for 2000, a decrease of $2.9 million or 25%.
We attribute the decrease primarily to decreased commission expense due to the lower sales levels. In addition, salaries, travel and
~advertising expenditures decreased in 2001 as compared to 2000, primarily as a result of the implementation of our cost containment
program.

Engineering and Product Development Expense. Engineering and product development expense was $6.1 million for 2001 compared
to $6.6 million for 2000, a decrease of $444,000 or 7%. We attribute the decease primarily to reduced salary expense resulting from
the cost containment program. In addition, our expenditures for research and development materials and travel decreased in our tester
interface product segment. These decreases were offset partially by an increase in spending on third party consultants involved in
various product development programs.

General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense was $7.9 million for 2001 compared to $7.3 million, an
increase of $629,000 or 9%. We attribute the increase primarily to an increase in salary expense resulting from the accrual of
separation payments to be made based upon a prior contractual arrangement with a former executive of a subsidiary. In addition, there
were increases in both legal and audit expenses. These increases were partially offset by decreases in profit-related bonuses,
reductions in salaries for remaining employees, bad debt recoveries, reductions in directors' fees and reduced spending on supplies.
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Impairment of Goodwill. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 121, Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, when events or circumstances so indicate, we assess
the potential impairment of our intangible assets and other long-lived assets based on anticipated undiscounted cash flows from
operations. Such events and circumstances include a sale of all or a significant part of the operations associated with the long-lived
asset or a significant decline in the operating performance of the asset. The amount of the impairment charge, if any, is calculated by
comparing the anticipated discounted future cash flows to the carrying value of the long-lived asset.

We performed an impairment assessment of our goodwill as of September 30, 2001, due to the cuirent industry downturn. As a result
of this assessment, a $4.6 million impairment charge was recorded for the goodwill associated with the acquisition of TestDesign,
which was the net book value of this goodwill as of that date. No impairment was indicated for the goodwill that is associated with the
acquisition of three of our foreign subsidiaries, which had a net book value of $933,000 at December 31, 2001.

Merger-related Costs. Merger-related costs totaling $2.7 million were recorded during 2000 as a result of our merger with Temptronic
Corporation. There were no merger-related costs during 2001.

Write-off of Deferred Offering Costs. During September 2000, we withdrew our registration statement for the offering of 2.0 million
shares of our common stock, 1.0 million of which were to be offered by us and 1.0 million by certain of our stockholders.
Approximately $415,000 of costs related to the withdrawn offering, which consisted primarily of professional fees, printing costs and
roadshow costs, were expensed during the third quarter of 2C00. '

Other Income. Other income was $551,000 for 2001 compared to $670,000 for 2000, a decrease of $119,000 or 18%. The decrease in
other income is primarily the result of the $280,000 reduction in interest income, resulting from lower average cash balances and
lower interest rates. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in third party royalty income from the licensing of our
intellectual property.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit). Income tax benefit was $2.8 million for 2001 compared with income tax expense of $5.2 million for
2000. Our effective tax rate for 2001 was 20% primarily as the result of the recording of a $4.6 million charge for impairment of
goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes. The 2000 effective tax rate was 45%, primarily due to $2.3 million of non-tax
deductible merger-related costs.

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net Revenues. Net revenues were $87.7 million for 2000 compared to $53.6 miilion for 1999, an increase of $34.1 million or 64%. We
believe that the significant increase in net revenues over the comparable prior period was principally the result of growth in the
demand for ATE that continued through most of 2000 as compared to 1999.

Gross Margin. Gross margin decreased to 45% in 2000 from 50% in 1999. The decline in gross margin was primarily the result of
increased material costs coupled with higher levels of fixed manufacturing costs and, to a lesser extent, for manipulator and docking
hardware products as well as tester interface products, an increase in the percentage of OEM sales in 2000 compared to 1999. The
increase in material costs was mainly the result of a significant inventory write-down due to obsolescence and, to a lesser extent,
higher costs to purchase certain component materials, such as aluminum, as well as increases in fabrication costs. The inventory write-
down was made against certain discontinued product lines, as well as other products where we did not see significant future demand
relative to inventory levels. We believe the increase in fabrication costs was the result of higher demand for fabrication in most of the
markets where we operate. The increase in fixed manufacturing costs was primarily the result of increased levels of salary expense
due to additional operations staff hired in late 1999 and 2000 in response to increased business activity as well as salary increases for
existing staff, combined with higher facility and depreciation costs primarily resulting from the relocation of certain of our
manufacturing facilities in the U.S. in order to significantly increase our manufacturing capacity. The decline in gross margin was
partially offset by the absorption of fixed manufacturing costs over significantly higher net revenue levels in 2000 compared tc 1999.

Selling Expense. Selling expense was $11.7 million for 2000 compared to $8.4 million for 1999, an increase of $3.3 miilion or 39%.
We attribute the increase primarily to increased commission expense related to the higher sales levels in 2000, as weli as higher levels
of salary and benefits expense for new and existing staff. To a lesser extent, higher levels of warranty expense, travel costs, freight and
advertising expenditures also contributed to the increase in selling expense.

Engineering and Product Development Expense. Engineering and product development expense was $6.6 million for 2000 compared
t0 $4.9 million for 1999, an increase of $1.7 million or 35%. We attribute the increase primarily to the salary and benefits expense of
additional engineering and technical staff and, to a lesser extent, increased spending on product development materials and fees for
technical consultants associated with new product development.
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General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense was $7.3 million for 2000 compared to $6.1 million for
1999, an increase of $1.2 million or 19%. We attribute the increase primarily to increases in incentive compensation for existing staff
and, to a lesser extent, increases in professional fees and travel costs. These increases were partially offset by the receipt of $300,000
in settlement of patent infringement litigation, which was recorded as a reduction of legal expense.

Merger-related Costs. Merger-related costs resulting from our merger with Temptronic Corporation were $2.7 million, which
consisted primarily of fees paid to investment bankers, professional fees, printing, escrow and other miscellaneous costs.

Write-off of Deferred Offering Costs. During September 2000, we withdrew our registration statement for the offering of 2.0 million
shares of our common stock, 1.0 million of which were to be offered by us and 1.0 million by certain of our stockholders.
Approximately $415,000 of costs related to the withdrawn offering, which consisted primarily of professional fees, printing costs and
roadshow costs, were expensed during the third quarter of 2000.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) was $670,000 for 2000 compared to $231,000 for 1999, an increase of $439,000 or
190%. We attribute the increase to the reduction in interest expense resulting from debt retirements early in 2000, combined with an
increase in interest income in 2000 from higher average balances of cash and cash equivalents in 2000 compared to 1999 and an
increase in other miscellaneous income.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased to $5.2 million for 2000 from $1.4 million for 1999. Our effective tax rate for
2000 was 45% compared to 19% for 1999. The significant increase in the effective tax rate was primarily due to $2.3 million of non-
tax deductible merger-related costs incurred in 2000, which significantly increased the 2000 effective tax rate, combined with a $1.4
million reduction in the valuation allowance in 1999, which significantly reduced the 1999 effective tax rate. The reduction in the
valuation allowance was based on management's assessment of our ability to realize the deferred tax assets.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operations for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $3.9 million. Accounts receivable decreased $9.4 million
from December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2001 due to the industry downturn throughout 2001. Inventories decreased $5.0 million,
primarily as the result of the write-down of obsolete inventory in 2001. Net domestic and foreign income taxes increased by $2.0
million, primarily as the result of the operating losses incurred during 2001. We expect to receive a tax refund of approximately $2.4
million during the first half of 2002. Accounts payable decreased $2.6 million due to lower production levels during 2001. Accrued
expenses decreased $1.5 million as a result of the payment of previously accrued expenses including sales commissions, incentive
compensation and merger-related costs.

Purchases of machinery and equipment were $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, which consisted primarily of
improvements to our facilities in the U.K., Singapore and Massachusetts. We also acquired an additional coordinate measuring
machine for our Cherry Hill, New Jersey facility under a capital lease. During the first half of 2001, we relocated our UK.
manufacturing operation to a new facility and converted the previous facility to a machine shop; we spent approximately $507,000 for
tenant improvements, furniture and new machining equipment. We relocated our Singapore subsidiary during April 2001 and spent
approximately $121,000 on leasehold improvements and purchases of furniture and equipment for this facility. During May 2001, we
relocated our Temptronic subsidiary and spent approximately $1.2 million on leasehold improvements and purchases of furniture and
equipment for this facility. Our lease on this facility entitles us to a reimbursement of approximately $280,000, which we expect to
receive during 2002. During June 2001, we spent approximately $183,000 on new equipment for our Sunnyvale facility.

. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $357,000, including approximately $216,000 for
equipment that was refinanced under a capital lease and approximately $100,000 of proceeds from the exercise of stock options

granted to employees.

Our total committed contracts that will affect cash over the next five years and beyond are as follows:

Expected Cash Payments By Year

2006 &
Contractual Commitments 2002 2003 2004 2005 Beyond Total
(3 in thousands)
Capital lease obligations ........ccoceecvnriniiiiiencnnnne $ 105 $ 105 $ 105 $ 164 $§ 17 $ 436
Operating lease obligations ...........cccocvvvceennennen, 1,895 1,814 1,708 1,325 6,245 12,987
Letiers Of Credit.coooviiiiiveeeieeeeeee e 200 -~ -- -- - 200

$2,200 $1919 $1,813 $1429 $6,262 $13,623
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As of December 31, 2001, we have a $5.0 million committed, unsecured line of credit, of which $4.8 million was available to borrow
(the $5.0 million committed amount less $200,000 in leiters of credit we have issued to third parties under this line). This line of credit
is due to expire September 30, 2002. We are currently negotiating with the bank which issued this line of credit to modify this facility
to extend the maturity for a period of two years. We expect that the amended agreements will provide for the granting of a security
interest in most of our domestic assets and the addition of certain negative covenants.

We believe that our existing cash balances and line of credit plus the anticipated net cash provided from operations will be sufficient
to satisfy our cash requirements for the foreseeable future. However, we have been experiencing operating losses due to the severe
industry downturn. Should the current industry downturn continue for longer than anticipated, or be more severe than we currently
project, and we are unable to further significantly reduce our fixed operating expenses, we may require additional equity or debt
financing to meet working capital requirements or capital expenditure needs. We cannot determine with certainty that, if needed, we
would be able to raise additional funding through either equity or debt financing. We do not anticipate paying dividends in the
foreseeable future. Under the terms of our current credit agreement, any payment of dividends would require the prior consent of the
lender.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141
requires the use of the purchase method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the
pooling-of-interests method.

In June 2001, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which will be effective for us on January 1,
2002. SFAS No. 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. SFAS No. 142 also requires us to
complete a transitional goodwill impairment test within six months from the date of adoption. As of the date of adoption, we had
unamortized goodwill of $933,000 which will be subject to the transition provisions of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142. Amortization expense
related to goodwill was $381,000, $479,000 and $479,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. Because of the
extensive effort needed to comply with adopting SFAS Nos. 141 and 142, it is not practicable to reasonably estimate the impact of -
adopting these Statements on our consolidated financial statements at the date of this report, including whether any transitional
impairment losses will be required to be recognized as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which supersedes
both SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of, and the.
accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of
a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions, for the disposal of a
segment of 2 business (as previously defined in that Opinion). SFAS No. 144 retains the fundamental provisions in SFAS No. 121 for
recognizing and measuring impairment losses on long-lived assets held for use and long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, while
also resolving significant implementation issues associated with SFAS No. 121. For example, SFAS No. 144 provides guidance on
how a long-lived asset that is used as part of a group should be evaluated for impairment, establishes criteria for when a long-lived
asset is held for sale, and prescribes the accounting for a long-lived asset that will be disposed of other than by sale. SFAS No. 144
retains the basic provisions of APB Opinion No. 30 on how to present discontinued operations in the income statement but broadens
that presentation to include a component of an entity (rather than a segment of a business). Unlike SFAS No. 121, an impairment
assessment under SFAS No. 144 will never result in a write-down of goodwill. Rather, goodwill is evaluated for impairment under
SFAS No. 142. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 144 effective January 1, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 144
for long-lived assets held for use to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements because the impairment '
assessment under SFAS No. 144 is largely unchanged from SFAS No. 121. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 for assets held for sale or
other disposal generally are required to be applied prospectively after the adoption date to newly initiated disposal activities.
Therefore, we cannot determine the potential effects that adoption of SFAS No. 144 will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America
requires us tc make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period.

Certain of our accounts, inciuding goodwill, inventory obsolescence write-downs, deferred income tax valuation allowances and
warranty reserves, are particularly impacted by estimates. Some of these accounting estimates and assumptions are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to our consolidated financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ markedly from what had been assumed when the financial statements were prepared.
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For example, we performed an impairment assessment of our goodwill during 2001 due to the current industry downturn. This
impairment assessment was based upon ten-year projections of operations for our subsidiaries where goodwill was associated. In
preparing these projections, we made subjective determinations of future events. If any of the significant assumptions were changed,

- materially different results cculd have occurred. As a result of this assessment, a $4.6 million impairment charge was recorded for the
- goodwill associated with the acquisition of TestDesign, which was the net book value of this goodwill as of that date.

In reviewing our inventory for obsolescence, we make assumptions about future demand for parts contained in our ending inventory,
which affect the levels of inventory write-downs during the period. These assumptions include estimates of future demand for our
products as well as when these products will become technologically obsolete. If any of the significant assumptions were changed,
materially different results could have occurred. As a result of this analysis, there was a $3.4 million write-down of obsolete inventory
during 2001.

Deferred tax assets must be analyzed to determine if there will be sufficient taxable income in the future in order to realize such assets.
To perform this analysis we prepare projections of our operations in which we make subjective determinations of future events. If our
projections do not indicate there will be sufficient levels of operating income in future periods to realize the deferred tax assets, we
establish a deferred income tax valuation allowance to offset the deferred tax assets. If any of the significant assumptions were
changed, materially different results could occur, which could significantly change the amount of the deferred income tax valuation
allowance established.

Finally, in connection with the accrual of warranty costs associated with our products, we make assumptions about the level of product
failures that will occur in the future. These assumptions are primarily based upon historical claims experience. Should the rate of
future product failures significantly exceed historical levels, our accrued warranty reserves would not be sufficient to cover future
warranty expenses and additional significant warranty expense would need to be accrued.

Risks That Could Affect Future Results

" The factors discussed below are cautionary statements that identify importént factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements. These factors may also cause our future results to
differ materially from our prior results.

Our forward-looking statements can often be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as "believes", "expects”,
“intends”, "may", "will", "should" or "anticipates” or similar terminology, and include, but are not limited to, statements made in this

*

Report regarding:

the significant economic downturn in the IC and ATE industries and the anticipated reversal of this cycle;
developments and trends in the IC and ATE industries;

the possibility of future acquisitions;

costs and timing of completion and integration of our acquisitions;

our cost-containment initiatives;

the development of new products and technologies by us or our competitors;
the availability of materials used to manufacture our products;

the availability of qualified personnel;

general economic conditions;

net revenues generated by foreign subsidiaries;

exchange rate fluctuations and the use of forward exchange rate contracts;
the increasing use of front-end testing by semiconductor manufacturers;
stock price fluctuations;

the anticipated market for our products; and

'the sufficiency of cash balances, lines of credit and net cash from operations.
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Our operating results and financial condition could continue to be negatively impacted if the semiconductor industry into
which we sell our products remzins depressed.

The current economic downturn, combined with significant excess production capacity in the semiconductor industry, have resulted in
the worst downturn the semiconductor and ATE industries have ever experienced. This climate has created significantly diminished
demand for our products, excess manufacturing capacity in our plants, and the erosion of average selling prices. We are uncertain how
long the current downturn will last. The terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001 may have exacerbated this downturn or caused it to
last longer. Any further decline in our customers’ markets or in general economic conditions would likely result in a further reduction
in demand for our products and could harm our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price. In
addition, we may be required to secure debt or equity financing, and we cannot be sure that such financing will be available when
required or on acceptable terms.
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Our sales reflect the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry, which causes our operating resuits to fluctuate significantiy.

Our business depends in significant part upon the capital expenditures of semiconductor manufacturers. Capital expenditures by these
companies depend upon, among other things, the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and the products that
utilize them. Typically, semiconductor manufacturers curtail capital expenditures during periods of economic downtown. Conversely,
semiconductor manufacturers increase capital expenditures when market demand requires the addition of new or expanded production
capabilities or the reconfiguration of existing fabrication facilities to accommodate new producis. These market changes have caused
in the past, and will likely cause in the future, our operating results to fluctuate. The current cyclical downturn in the semiconductor
industry has significantly reduced demand for our products. Our sales and operating results will likely continue to be reduced during
this downturn.

Our operating results often change significantly from guarter to guarter and may cause fluctuations in our stock price.

During the last three years, our operating results have fluctuated significantly from quarter to quarter. We believe that these
fluctuations occur primarily due to the cycles of demand in the semiconductor manufacturing industry. In addition to the changing
cycles of demand in the semiconductor manufacturing industry, other factors that have caused our quarterly operating results to
fluctuate in the past, and that may cause fluctuations or losses in the future, include:

competitive pricing pressures;

the impairment of our assets due to reduced future demand for our products;

our ability to control operating costs;

delays in shipments of our products;

the mix of our products sold;

the mix of customers and geographic regions where we sell our products;

changes in the level of our fixed costs;

costs associated with the development of our proprietary technology;

costs and timing of completion and integration of our acquisitions and plant relocations and expansions;
the timing of additional selling, general and administrative expenses to support our new business;
our ability to obtain raw materials or fabricated parts when needed; and

cancellation or rescheduling of orders by our customers.
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Because the market price of our common stock has tended to vary based on, and in relation to, changes in our operating results,
fluctuations in the market price of our stock are likely to continue as variations in our quarterly results continue.

If we are not able to contrel cur operating expenses during a cyclical downturn, we may not have sufficient cash to operate our
businesses.

Due to the current cyclical downturn, we have implemented cost containment strategies with a goal of reducing our operating
expenses and preserving our cash. These strategies include workforce reductions at all of our facilities worldwide, salary reductions
for all employees worldwide, a temporary elimination of domestic retirement benefits and additional cost controls on other
expenditures. We may not be successful in reaching our goal of reducing our operating expenses sufficiently to maintain our existing
cash balances and, if we are not able to control our operating expenses, they could increase and the level of our cash may not be
sufficient to operate our businesses. We cannot determine with certainty that, if needed, we would be able to raise additional funding
through either equity or debt financing.

We intend to acquire additional businesses. If we are unable to do so, our future rate of growth may be reduced or limited.

A key element of our growth strategy is to acquire businesses, technologies or products that expand and complement our current
businesses. We may not be able to execute our acquisition strategy if:

¢ we are unable to identify suitable businesses or technologies to acquire;
e we do not have access to required capital at the necessary time; or
e we are unwilling or unable to outbid larger, more resourceful companies.

Our acquisition strategy involves financial and management risks which may adversely affect cur earnings in the future.

If we acquire additional businesses, technologies or products, we will face the following additional risks:

o future acquisitions could divert management's attention from daily operations or otherwise require additional
management, operational and financial resources;
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o we might not be able to integrate future acquisitions into our business successfully or operate acquired businesses
profitably;

o  we may realize substantial acquisition related expenses which would reduce our net earnings in future years; and

® our investigation of potential acquisition candidates may not reveal problems and liabilities of the companies that we
acquire.

If any of the events described above occur, our earnings could be reduced. If we issue shares of our stock or other rights to purchase
our stock in connection with any future acquisitions, we would dilute our existing stockholders' interests and our earnings per share
may decrease. If we issue debt in connection with any future acquisitions, lenders may impose covenants on use which could, among
other things, restrict our ability to increase capital expenditures or to acquire additional businesses.

Our indusiry is subject to rapidly evelving ffecl’mmﬂogimﬁ chamge, and our business prospects would be hurt if we are unable to
respond to innovation im the semiconductor industry.

Semiconductor technology continues to become more complex as manufacturers incorporate ICs into an increasing variety of
products. This trend, and the rapid changes needed in automatic testing systems to respond to developments in the semiconductor
industry, are likely to continue. We cannot be certain that we will be successful in developing, manufacturing or selling products that
will satisfy customer needs or attain market acceptance. Our failure to provide products that meet customer needs or gain market
acceptance will hurt our business prospects.

If we are not able to obtain patents on or otherwise preserve and protect our proprietary technologies, our business may
suffer, .

We have obtained domestic and foreign patents covering some of our products which expire between the years 2002 and 2018, and we
have pending applications for additional patents. Some of our products utilize proprietary technology that is not covered by patent or
similar protection, and in many cases, cannot be protected. We cannot be certain that:

o  any additional patents will be issued on our applications;
& any patents we own now or in the future will protect our business against competitors that develop similar technology or
products;
our patenis will be held valid if they are challenged or subjected to reexamination or reissue;
others will not claim rights to our patented or other proprietary technologies; or
others will not develop technologies which are similar to, or can compete with, our unpatented proprietary technologies.

If we cannot obtain patent or other protection for our proprietary technologies, our ability to compete in our markets could be
impaired.

Claims of intellectual property infringement by or against us could seriously harm our businesses.

From time to time, we may be forced to respond to or prosecute intellectual property infringement claims to defend or protect our
rights or a customer's rights. These claims, regardless of merit, may consume valuable management time, result in costly litigation or
cause product shipment delays. Any of these factors could seriously harm our business and operating results. We may have to enter
into royalty or licensing agreements with third parties who claim infringement. These royalty or licensing agreements, if available,
may be costly to us. If we are unable to enter into royalty or licensing agreements with satisfactory terms, our business could suffer. In
instances where we have had reason to believe that we may be infringing the patent rights of others, or that someone may be infringing
our patent rights, we have asked our patent counsel to evaluate the validity of the patents in question, as well as the potentially
infringing conduct. If we become involved in a dispute, neither the third parties nor the courts are bound by our counsel's conclusions.

QOur business will suffer if we cannot compete successfully with manufacturers whose products are similar to curs.

We compete with numerous manufacturers, many of whom have greater financial resources and more extensive design and production
capabilities than we do. Some of our principal competitors in the sale of manipulator, docking and tester interface products are Reid-
Ashman Manufacturing, Microhandling GmbH, Credence Systems, LTX, Schlumberger, Teradyne and Cerprobe. Some of our
principal competitors in the sale of temperature-management products are Trio-Tech International, Thermonics and ERS Elektronik
GmbH. In order to remain competitive with these and other companies, we must be able to continue to commit a significant portion: of
our personnel, financial resources, research and development and customer support to developing new products and maintaining
customer satisfaction worldwide. If we are not able to compete successfully, our business will suffer.
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We generate 2 large portion of our szles from & small number of customers. If we were to lose one or more of our large
customers, operating results could suffer dramaticaily.

Our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 62% of net revenues in 2001, and one customer, Agilent Technologies,
accounted for 15% of our net revenues in 2001. The loss of any one or more of our largest customers, or a reduction in orders by a
major customer, could materially reduce our net revenues.

if we do not continue to retain the services of key personnel, relationships with, and sales to, some of our customers could
suffer. ‘

The loss of key personnel could adversely affect our ability to manage our business effectively. Our future success will depend largely
upon the continued services of our senior management and certain other key employees. Generally, we do not have employment
agreements with any of our executive officers or other key employees. Our future success will depend, in part, upon our ability to
retain our managers, engineers and other key employees. Qur business could suffer if we were unable to retain one or more of our
senior officers or other key employees.

. A substantial portion of our operations exists cutside the U.S., which exposes us to foreign political and economic risks.

We have operated internationally for many years and expect to expand our international operations as necessary to continue expansion
of our sales and service to our non-U.S. customers. Qur foreign subsidiaries generated 13% and 16% of consolidated net revenues in
2001 and 2000, respectively. Export sales from our U.S. manufacturing facilities totaled $9.0 million, or 17% of consolidated net
revenues in 2001 and $23.0 million, or 26% in 2000. The portion of our consolidated net revenues that were derived from sales by our
subsidiaries in the Asia-Pacific region were 6% in 2001 and 9% in 2000. Countries in the Asia-Pacific region, including Japan, have
experienced economic instability resulting in weaknesses in their currency, banking and equity markets. Although the economic
instability in the Asia-Pacific region has not had a material adverse effect on our order backlog, financial condition, or results of
operations to date, continued economic instability could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products and our results of
operations. We expect our international revenues will continue to represent a significant portion of total net revenues. To date, we
have not experienced significant problems in our foreign operations. However, in addition to the risks generally associated with sales
and operations in the U.S., sales to customers outside the U.S. and operations in foreign countries are subject to additional risks, which
may, in the future, affect our operations. These risks include:

political and economic instability in foreign countries;

the imposition of financial and operational controls and regulatory restrictions by foreign governments;
the need to comply with a wide variety of U.S. and foreign import and export laws;

trade restrictions;

changes in tariffs and taxes;

longer payment cycles;

fluctuations in currency exchange rates; and

the greater difficulty of administering business abroad.
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We conduct business in foreign currencies, and fluctuations in the values of those currencies could result in foreign exchange
losses.

In 2001, approximately 3% of our net revenues were dominated in Japanese yen, approximately 5% were dominated in British pounds,
and approximately 3% were dominated in German deutsche marks. Fluctuations in the values of these currencies could result in
foreign exchange losses. Any strengthening of the U.S. dollar in relation to the currencies of our competitors or customers, or
strengthening or weakening of the Japanese yen, British pound or German deutsche mark (or the Euro beginning in 2002) in relation
to other currencies in which our customers or competitors do business, could adversely affect our competitiveness. Moreover, a
strengthening of the U.S. dollar or other competitive factors could put pressure on us to denominate a greater portion of our sales in
foreign currencies, thereby increasing our exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates. Any devaluation of these currencies would hurt
our business. We do not undertake hedging activities against all of our exchange rate risk. Fluctuations in exchange rates may
adversely affect our competitive position or result in foreign exchange losses, either of which could cause our business to suffer.

Item 74: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to currency exchange rate risk in the normal course of our business, primarily in our Japanese operations. Our
exposure results from the fact that the sales of our Japanese subsidiary are in Japanese yen and inventory purchases are in U.S. dollars.
We have the same exposure in our German operations as a portion of total sales are in German deutsche marks (or the Euro beginning
in 2002) while inventory purchases are in U.S. dollars. We will also have a similar exposure in our Singapore operations as our
manufacturing operations expand, because our sales are in U.S. dollars but some of our manufacturing costs are in British pounds and
Singapore dollars. We employ risk management strategies, including the use of forward exchange rate contracts, to manage our
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_exposure to exchange rate risks involving the yen, and may, in the future, use forward exchange rate contracts to manage our exposure
to exchange rate risks involving the Singapore dollar and German deutsche mark (or the Euro beginning in 2002).
Our objective in managing currency exchange risk is to minimize the impact of significant currency exchange rate fluctuations. We
use forward exchange rate contracts to establish a fixed conversion rate between the Japanese yen and the U.S. dollar so that the level
of our gross margin from sales in Japan is not negatively affected by significant movements in the Japanese yen to U.S. dollar
exchange rate. We purchase forward exchange rate contracts on a monthly basis in the amounts management deems appropriate in
light of the amount of the U.S. dollar denominated obligations of our Japanese subsidiary that are due within the month. We do not
purchase forward contracts with settlement dates beyond 30 days. As of December 31, 2001, there were no forward exchange rate
contracts outstanding.

It is our policy to enter into forward exchange rate contracts only to the extent necessary to achieve the desired objectives of
management in limiting our exposure to significant fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We do not hedge all of our currency
exchange rate risk exposures in a manner that would completely eliminate the impact of changes in currency exchange rates on our net

earnings. We do not expect that the results of our operations or our liquidity will be materially affected by these risk management
activities.

- Item 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Consolidated financial statements are set forth in this Report beginning at page F-1

Item 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURES ’

None

PART III:

Item 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information required by this item will be filed not later than April 30, 2002 by an amendment to this Report or
incorporation by reference to the proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be filed not later than April 30, 2002 by an amendment to this Report or
incorporation by reference to the proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item will be filed not later than April 30, 2002 by an amendment to this Report or
incorporation by reference to the proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item will be filed not later than April 30, 2002 by an amendment to this Report or
incorporation by reference to the proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV:
Ttem 14: EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The documents filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-X are:

1 Our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto as well as the applicable report of the independent
certified public accountants are included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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(i1) The following consolidated financial statement schedule should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements set forth in Part I, Item § of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule II -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(iii) The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are included under ftem 14(c) of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On October 26, 2001, we filed a Report on Form 8-K providing information responsive to the requirements of Items 5
and 7 of that form regarding our financial results for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2001.

(c) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation.*
32 By Laws.*
10.1 Consulting Agreement, dated April 1, 1997, between the Company and Stuart F.
Daniels.*
10.2 Lease dated October 27, 1999 between Earl E. and Mitsue Jio and inTEST Sunnyvale, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.**
10.3 Temptronic Corporation 1998 Incentive and Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan ***
104 Lease Agreement between First Industrial, L.P. and the Company, dated
June 6, 2000.%***
10.5 Lease between SPHOS, Inc. and Temptronic Corporation (a subsidiary of the Company),
dated December 27, 2000, ***** ' )
10.6 Change of Control Agreement dated April 17, 2001 between the Company and Robert E.
Matthiessen******
10.7 Change of Control Agreement dated April 17, 2001 between the Company and Hugh T.
Regan’ ]r‘****** . °
10.8 Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Plan, *******
10.9 Loan Agreement dated November 16, 2000 between PNC Bank, National Association and

the Company****#
10.10 Note payable to PNC Bank, National Associated dated November 1, 2000%***#*

10.11 Letter dated September 28, 2001, renewing the Loan Agreement dated November 16, 2000
and Note dated November 1, 2000 %k ks

21 Subsidiaries of the Cdmpany.

23 Consent of KPMG LLP. ’

* Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on
Form S-1, File No. 333-26457 filed May 2, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference.

ok Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Company's Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999, filed March 30, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference.

rk Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Company's Form 10-Q/A for the
quarter ended March 31, 2000, filed June 21, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference.

*odAk Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Company's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2000, filed August 14, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference.

HRRAA Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Company's Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2000, filed March 30, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.

*hkkkk  Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit 1o the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2001, filed May 15, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.

*xkxkkx  Previously filed as an appendix to the Company's proxy statement filed April 27, 2001,
and incorporated herein by reference.

ki Previously filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2001, filed November 14, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

inTEST Corporation

By: /s/ Robert E. Matthiessen
Robert E. Matthiessen
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Robert E. Matthiessen April 1, 2002
Robert E. Matthiessen, President, ’

Chief Executive Officer and Director

(principal executive officer)

/s/ Hugh T. Regan, Jr. April 1, 2002
Hugh T. Regan, Jr., Treasurer, Chief

Financial Officer and Secretary

(principal financial officer)

/s/ Daniel J. Graham April 1, 2002
Daniel J. Graham, Vice Chairman, .
Executive Vice President

/s/ Alyn R. Holt April 1, 2002
Alyn R. Holt, Chairman

{s/ Richard O. Endres April 1, 2002
" Richard O. Endres, Director

" /s/ Stuart F. Daniels April 1, 2002
Stuart F. Daniels, Director

/s/ Gregory W. Slayton - ' April .1, 2002
Gregory W. Siayton, Director ‘

/s/ Douglas W. Smith ‘ April 1, 2002
Douglas W. Smith, Director

/s/ James J. Greed, Jr. April 1, 2002
James J. Greed, Jr, Director ‘
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
inTEST Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of inTEST Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive earnings (loss), stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial
statements, we also have audited the consolidated financial statement schedule of valuation and qualifying accounts as of and for the
three years ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
and consolidated financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well -as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
inTEST Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation
to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

Is’/KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 25,2002 -




inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,
2801 2008
ASSETS:
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS.........cccovirieerieerierre ettt s s ereisesere s senes reeereenene $ 7,281 $ 5,680
Trade accounts and notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $125 and $241, reSPeCtiVelY.....c.ccuerrmireorieeecieceren e e 5,191 14,752
BEsAT= ey = FOT USSR 7,554 12,559
DDEFEITEA TAK BSSEL...ccvvieeiieictieeetiieeree e stbeeetaseeveeeebestereeeabes s tbeetsesaabaesaressensearsnsessansnnsaaessrresnnseas 1,539 1,287
Refundable domestic and foreign inCoOmMe tAXES . ....cvevveervviiiriceiicsienriiner i sesesessonns 2,428 931
OURET CUITEIT ASSELS .c.veveeveeutireererieeeeterass et et e e ste bt sb e besae st st se e besb e ebesat e b eebese b besse s seeemaesanonesn 421 463
TOLA] CUTTENE ASSELS...euvirereueritiriiercrtem et ettt e e e e resereres e ssbesesebe s e smeetesbaasaesinene 24,414 35.672
Property and equipment:
Machinery and eqUIPIMENL..........cocoiiiiiciiiii s e 9,167 _ 9,856
Leasehold IMPTOVEMENLS .........ccvcviiiiieiiiinriii ettt ese b s oo b et saes 2,607 2,750
. ‘ 11,774 12,606
Less: accumulated depreciation ...ttt st sn e s (6,031 (7.519)
Net property and EqUIPIMENL.........ccccierieiiiriienieee et see et nsreste st resaseres 5.743 5.087
Deferred 1aX aSSet......vverererrervrerrrreersersreesssneensnes ettt et 30 210
OINET BSSELS 1.evuvereeeeetiriecereeaiaet st ettt ste st eeae st ssete s se e b sh et s beseaatebeasaa e e b e s eoses e s tabasesaaseseeraanaenessansesean 648 407
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $406 and $1,259, respectively ......ccccovvvnrerennne. 933 5926
TOLAL ASSELS ... viritirereeet et et cte st st et s e ree st s et st b e e bt st ebene bt e et e abe st erenteras $31.768 $47.302
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable .......ccooevecieniniiineeee et ra——ee et earae et eeaate s aeaatasrttsraaatesabaeenans $ 1,869 $ 4,563
ACCTURE EXPEMSES....ueiiviiriiiriiiciteii ittt seas sttt sa e s e s s b e se st e sr e srssane s 2,100 3,568
Domestic and foreign income taxes payable........ccoviveiiiiiniiiiciiiicneereee e 218 773
Capital 18ase OBIIZALIONS .....ovvveeieriiiiii ettt et st e 81 -
Total current HaDIEES .....ccocvieriiiiiie e 4,268 8.904
Capital lease obligations, net of CUTTENt POTTON..........ccoircriiiniiriti s s 296 -
Total Habilities .....ocovriiiiiiiie ettt e st s e s 4.564 8,904
Commitments
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;

no shares issued or outstanding...........cooevviiiniiinniiinn ettt s sa e e - -
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized;

8,685,205 and 8,658,511 shares issued, TESPECHVELY .....c..ovevrerervrrrenmserensssieesesseseseanscennns 87 87
Additional Paid-in CaPItal......ccoririiiieii ettt 21,781 22,328
RE1AINEA CATTIHINZS ... veveeiieitiie it e cai ettt e st et ae e s bt et en e st e e nbe b st ese s e st eenesrens 8,127 19,456
Accumulated other COMPrehensive 10SS ......coeiiviiiiiinieiniecrcrrer et (451) (360)
Deferred compensation ...........cc.coovvveiereriencnnene e — e ee e aer et e e e i — e e et reaarrereeatraeeaens (16) (98)
Note receivable from Equity Participation Plan..........ccocevviiiiiiinniiiciciic e - (3,075)
Treasury stock, at cost; 375,982 and O shares, respectively ..o, (2,324) -

Total stockholders’ EQUILY .......oceiicrirrreii e s sasmeas 27.204 38.398
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity .........cccccvveiminiieniincccinn s $31.768 $47,302

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2600 1999
Nl TEVEIIUES . ..evveieeeererereie i e cbeetteeeeesssssestarsaresesssasissbaeesesssasesarssssessssssneressstsasnsrentsssansneseseian $51,627 $87,651 $53,585
COSE Of TEVEMUES .....covveceiecriiteeeri et e ettt et et ee e eesessbeeteerbestnestsenresssesrnssanessesaneenes e 38.916. 48,095 _26.875
GrOSS MATEITN ...oveieveiiitiiiertet ettt ess et st e sttt bbb ets s b sr e see s s enaenen 12711 39,556 26,710
Operating expenses:
SEIENME EXPEMSE «.veiieriiiieniiieicite ettt sttt et ettt e b b see b st es e rat s e stn e sen e ene 8,754 11,711 8,418
Engineering and product development EXPenSe .....cvvvriiivmieininiieee s 6,132 6,576 4,864
1 General and administrative EXPENSE. ..o ivirereirree ettt eanene 7,902 7,273 6,101
- Impairment of GOOAWIll........c.oovieiiriiiiiie e et 4,612 - -
. MeETger-related COSIS.....ooiviiiiimiiiii ittt sttt ettt essernenin - 2,672 -
. Write-0ff of deferred OFfETiNZ COSLS ....cvovimmirirririireireiesiese st seaeses et sssrs s teesbesasanes - 415 -
Total OPErating EXPENSES .....cceeriiiriviieriirice ettt sttt ene 27,400 28.647 19,383
Operating INCOME (I088) ..veviiiiiiiieertieii et e s s b s et sa e semesi e e (14.689) 10,509 7,327
Other income {expense): '
INEETESE IMCOIMIE ..uvveeeveritieetiere ettt et stte et et et ea e emae st e sreessesmeeame e e emecesbeeare e ransneness , 213 493 348
INEETESE BXPEMSE...cviiiitiiiiieitii ittt st e s s b et s b e nee s 31 3D (229)
OHRET ettt a ettt ae e st e b e bt et e et ba bt skt et bt es bt e e e se e enaenea 369 208 112
Total other iNCOME (EXPENSE) ..cviviriieiriiiiiiriiiiii st aas 551 670 231
Earnings (1055) DEfOre INCOME TAXES. ...viiviiieie et seerteste e e resiesae st e e e e rarrees (14,138) 11,579 7,558
Income tax eXpense (DENETIt) co.ccoiiviriiee ettt e e (2.80%9) 5,200 1.425
Net €arnings (L0SS8) ... .ovvevrreeiirrreirireerrereerrr st sneseees e e se e besee s sesanesessnne $(11,329) $ 6.379 $ 6,133
Net earnings (loss) per cOmMmMON Share — basiC.......cceeerrnrernrrerirneeernneeeinnse e ssserenenes $(1.37) $0.78 $0.76
Weighted average common shares outstanding — DasIC ...oovvvecivererirnrnsreiresersr s 8,279,356 8,201,029 8,084,398
Net earnings (loss) per common share — diluted .......ccoveevinevnicrcnincirr e $(1.37) $C.75 -$0.74
Weighted average common shares and common share equivalents v
outstanding — AilUIEd ........cooveeeiiiriciie e et e 8,279,356 8,265,537

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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inTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (LOSS)
\ (In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
-Net earnings (loss) i $(11,329) 36,379 "~ $6,133
- Foreign currency transiation adjustments ........c.coviivveiinicciiinciricisesn (151) _(314 _49
Comprehensive earnings (10SS) ....ov.iverereririrvseeressiisssesers s sississsss s ssssssssessasssssrssanass $(11.480) $6.065 $6,182

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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InTEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NEt €armINEG (IOSS) .vvvvivvririiieeiiieiieeterise st se st et e s st e s sesas bt ernsassassssessesesasasasass $(11,329) $ 6,379 $ 6,133
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation . .....ccccovvervirireicrictine s e e s ereeeeennn 1,801 1,595 950
Amortization of G0OAWill............cccceveeiiiieiieierereree e et 381 479 479
Impairment of goodWill..........ccoiiii 4,612 - -
Tax benefit from exercise of stock OPLioNS ....ccovviviiiiiiiiine 22 454 -
DEfEITed TAXES ..o evereieriitiie sttt st ettt ettt bt b st ek e e et sanneanene (72) 124 (1,377)
Foreign exchange (gain) 10SS ......ccvciiiniiiiiciii st 15 (28) (36)
Deferred compensation relating to Stock Options ..o . 58 41 75
Loss on disposal of fixed assets ... Y 16 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts and NOtes reCeIVADIE ..........ccvvviviiiriecieiee e e 9,429 (4,901) (4,189)
J N 111075 (= PO s 4,973 (4,604) (2,080)
Proceeds from sale of demonstration equipment, net of gain..........cocoereiiene e 121 17 85
Refundable domestic and foreign InCOME taXes ......cccceveereenenniivnensrenererorenenees (1,476) 477 1,123 -
Other CUITEME @SSELS ..i.uvveiiviiieieeriireeierirreeestteeeesisraessaesesseaesseeerrressrnesssessrerarssnnes 31 431 (481)
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt ettt e (2,629) (543) 3,045
Domestic and foreign income taxes payable .......cocccocvevvciiiinnioniencienee (553) (1,505) 1,639
. ACCTUEA EXPEISES ..ueveccenrrsecveei ettt et (1.454) 581 1,561
Net cash provided by (used in) operating aCtivities ..........ccccovivvniininnniinens 3.939 (1.941) 6.927
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
Purchase of machinery and eqUIPMEnt........cocooeriiiiiiiennee e evees (2,378) (4,050) (1,596)
Other I0NZ-tErM ASSELS .veverirrirererrr e ecerarerrrneenesrerenarenans ettt erens (27D 921 (109)
Net cash used in INVESHNE ACHVILIES ..vvcvveriririinie st en et eseeneeerens (2.65%5) (3.129) (1,656)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayments of revolving debt ........cccooiiniiiii e ' - (1,241) (1,784)
- Repayment of 1ong-term debt. ..ot e (65) . (256) (156)
Proceeds from financing of machinery and equipment...........ccccvvieeveciennnniininnenne, 216 - -
Note receivable repayments from Equity Participation Plan..........ccoovvveniniicnnnenn 147 <153 139
Acquisition Of treasury StOCK ..ot oo an - -
Proceeds from stock options eXerciSed . .....cecvevercierieinieiiniciiinen et 100 227 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ........ccceeiniiiiinniiniic i 357 (1.117 (1.801)
Effects of exchange rates On Cash ......ccovoeioiiiiiiic ettt s see e e (40) (180) (20)
Net cash provided by (used in) all aCVIHES .......ccoviiiiiiiiinrn e 1,601 (6,367) 3410
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .......c..ooevvreeoenenniie s 5.680 12,047 8,637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period...........ccoeveimiirerinvenceeriniir e e $ 7.281 5.680 $12.047
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Capital 16ase additiONS ........oererceriiiiiiei i e s § 226 $ - $ -
Treasury stock acquired as repayment of Equity Participation Plan -
note receivable (See NOE 10) ..ot eve ettt $ 2,324 h) - h) -
Cash (refunds) payments for: .
Domestic and fOreign iNCOME TAXES ...ecvvvvvrverereiererreereririresisieseraiessssssenseseseseesassssenses $ (752) $ 6,573 $§ 59
TIIEETESE. ..ottt ettt ettt ettt b sttt a e st e s e s e s e e ae e e eaesabe e st ae s bt e nenenees 29 32 240

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Ml CURFURA LIUIN
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

We are a leading independent designer, manufacturer and marketer of manipulator and docking hardware products, temperature
management systems and tester interface products that are used by semiconductor manufacturers in conjunction with automatic
test equipment, or ATE, in the testing of integrated circuits, or ICs.

The consolidated entity is comprised of inTEST Corporation (parent) and our nine 160% owned subsidiaries: inTEST Limited
{Thame, U.K.), inTEST Kabushiki Kaisha (Kichijoji, Japan), inTEST PTE, Limited (Singapore), inTEST Sunnyvale Corp.
(formerly TestDesign Corporation) (Delaware), Temptronic Corporation (Delaware), inTEST GmbH (Germany) (operations
commenced during August 2000), inTEST Investments, Inc. (a Delaware holding company), inTEST [P Corp (a Delaware
holding company) and inTEST Licensing Corp. (a Delaware holding company).

We manufacture our products in the U.S., the U.K. and Singapore. Marketing and support activities are conducted worldwide
from our facilities in the U.S., the U.K., Germany, Japan and Singapore.

On March 9, 2000, we completed a merger with Temptronic Corporation ("Temptronic") whereby Temptronic was merged into
one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. We exchanged 2,046,793 shares of our common stock for all of the Temptronic common
stock. Each share of Temptronic common stock was exchanged for 0.925 shares of our common stock. In addition, outstanding
Temptronic stock options were converted at the same exchange ratio into options to acquire 175,686 shares of our common
stock. The merger was accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method of accounting and, accordingly, our consolidated
financial statements for periods prior to the merger date were retroactively restated to give effect to the merger. Upon
consummation of the merger, 55,557 shares of treasury stock held by Temptronic with a cost of $224 were retired. Temptromc
also has a 100% owned foreign subsidiary, which is consolidated with Temptronic for reporting purposes.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain of our accounts, including goodwill, inventory obsolescence write-
downs, deferred income tax valuation allowances and warranty reserves, are particularly impacted by estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

Our historic results of operations as presented in these consolidated financial statements may not be indicative of future results.
Factors that could affect our future operating results and cause actual results to vary materially from historical results include,
but are not limited to, the highly cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry; dependence upon capital expenditures of
semiconductor manufacturers; developments and trends in the IC and ATE industries; changes in general economic, business
and financial market conditions; future acquisitions and our ability to successfully integrate our operations with those of the
acquired entity; costs associated with future acquisitions and integration of operations; the impairment of goodwill reiated to
prior or future acquisitions; the ability to effectively control operating costs; competitive pricing pressures; delays in shipments
of products; the mix of products sold; the mix of customers and geographic regions where products are sold; the loss of, or
reduction in orders from, a major customer; the development of new products and technologies by us or our competitors; our
ability to obtain patent protection and to enforce patent rights for existing and developing proprietary technologies; the
technological obsolescence of our inventory; the availability of qualified personnel; net revenues generated by foreign
subsidiaries; exchange rate fluctuations and thie use of forward exchange rate contracts; the anticipated market for our products;
and the sufficiency of cash balances, lines of credit and net cash from operations.

Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to be comparable with the current year's presentation.
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InTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING PQLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Short-term investments which have maturities of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents
and are carried at cost, which approximates market value.

Trade Notes Receivable

Trade notes receivable are due from trade customers in J apan, and have original maturities of less than four months. The notes
are non-interest bearing. Trade notes receivable were $36 and $193 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Credit Risks

We grant credit to customers and generally require no collateral. To minimize our risk, we perform ongoing credit evaluations
of our customers' financial condition. Bad debt expense (recovery) was $(104), $31, and $16 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined under the first-in first-out (FIFC) method.

Property and Equipment

Machinery and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is based upon the estimated useful life of the assets using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives range from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and -
amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset. Total depreciation expense was $1,801,
$1,595 and $950 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

Intangibles

* Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of the minority interest in three of our foreign subsidiaries and the acquisition of

TestDesign is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. Total amortization expense for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 was $381, $479 and $479, respectively. When events or circumstances so indicate, we assess the potential
impairment of our intangible assets and other long-lived assets based on anticipated undiscounted cash flows from operations.
Such-events and circumstances include a sale of all or a significant part of the operations associated with the long-lived asset, or
a significant decline in the operating performance of the asset. The amount of impairment charge, if any, is calculated by
comparing the anticipated discounted future cash flows to the carrying value of the long-lived asset.

We performed an impairment assessment of our goodwill as of September 30, 2001, due to the current industry downturn. As a
result of this assessment, a $4,612 impairment charge was recorded for the goodwill that is associated with the acquisition of
TestDesign, which was the net book value of this goodwill as of that date. No impairment was indicated for the goodwill that is
associated with the acquisition of three of our foreign subsidiaries which had a net book value of $933 at December 31, 2001.

Income Taxes

The asset and liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded
to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that such assets will be realized.

Net Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

Net earnings (loss) per common share is computed in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS")
No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share is
computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents
outstanding during each year. Common share equivalents represent stock options and are calculated using the treasury stock
method. Common share equivalents are excluded from the calculation if their effect is anti-dilutive.

A reconciliation of weighted average common shares outstanding -- basic to weighted average common shares outstanding --
diluted appears below:

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic..........ccccevnene 8,279,356 8,201,029 8,084,398
Potentially dilutive securities:
Employee Stock OPtOMNS ......vevuieiirieeireni et ceeeennene - 268,881 181,139
Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted .................... 8.279.356 8,469.910  8.265.537

For the year ended December 31, 2001, common share equivalents of 95,288 were excluded from the calculation because their
effect was anti-dilutive. Weighted average common shares outstanding exclude unallocated shares of common stock held by the
Temptronic Corporation Equity Participation Plan ("EPP") (see Note 10).

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from sales of products are recognized upon shipment to customers. Service revenues are recognized as the services

_are performed.

Engineering and Product Development

Engineering and product development costs, which consist primarily of the salary and related benefits costs of our technical
staff, as well as product development costs, are expensed as incurred.

Product Warranties
We generally provide product warranties and record estimated warranty expense at the time of sale based upon historical claims
experience. Warranty expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $1,044, $1,102 and $790,

respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for our stock option plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. As
permitted by SFAS No. 123, we have elected to continue to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting
Jfor Stock Issued to Employees ("APB 25") in accounting for our stock option plans. Under APB 25, we do not recognize
compensation expense on the issuance of our stock options to employees and non-employee directors when the option terms are
fixed and the exercise price equals the fair value of the underlying stock on the grant date. Compensation expense for stock
options granted to non-employees is accounted for based upon the fair value of the opticns on the date of grant, in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS No. 123. '

Foreign Currency

The accounts of the foreign subsidiaries are translated in accordance with SFAS No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation, which
requires that assets and liabilities of international operations be translated using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet
date. The results of operations are translated using an average exchange rate for the period. The effects of rate fluctuations in
translating assets and liabilities of international operations into U.S. dollars are accumulated within other comprehensive
income or loss in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains or losses are included in net earnings
(loss).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial Instruments

Qur financial instruments, principally accounts and notes receivable and accounts payable, are carried at cost which
approximates fair value, due to the short maturities of the accounts. The estimated fair values of our capital lease obligations

_approximated their carrying value based upon the rates offered to us for similar type arrangements.

New Accounting Pronouncemernts

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, which established accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities.
SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS Nos. 137 and 138, was effective for all fiscal quarters of fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2000. We adopted SFAS No. 133 in the first quarter of 2001, as required. The adoption of SFAS No. 133, as amended, did
not have an effect on our results of operations, financial condition or long-term liquidity.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141 requires the use of the purchase method
of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-interests method.

In June 2001, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which will be effective for us on
January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. SFAS No. 142 also
requires us to complete a transitional goodwill impairment test within six months from the date of adoption. As of the date of
adoption, we had unamortized goodwill of $933 which will be subject to the transition provisions of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142.
Amortization expense related to goodwill was $381, $479 and $479 for the years ended December 31, 2601, 2000 and 1999.
Because of the extensive effort needed to comply with adopting SFAS Nos. 141 and 142, it is not practicable to reasonably
estimate the impact of adopting these Statements on our consolidated financial statements at the date of this report, including
whether any transitional impairment losses will be required to be recognized as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle. '

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which
supersedes both SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of, and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and
Transactions, for the disposal of a segment of a business (as previously defined in that Opinion). SFAS No. 144 retains the
fundamental provisions in SFAS No. 121 for recognizing and measuring impairment losses on long-lived assets held for use
and long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, while also resolving significant implementation issues associated with SFAS
No. 121. For example, SFAS No. 144 provides guidance on how a long-lived asset that is used as part of a group should be
evaluated for impairment, establishes criteria for when a long-lived asset is held for sale, and prescribes the accounting for a
long-lived asset that will be disposed of other than by sale. SFAS No. 144 retains the basic provisions of APB Opinion No. 30
on how to present discontinued operations in the income statement but broadens that presentation to include a component of an
entity (rather than a segment of a business). Unlike SFAS No. 121, an impairment assessment under SFAS No. 144 will never
result in a write-down of goodwill. Rather, goodwill is evaluated for impairment under SFAS No. 142. We are required to
adopt SFAS No. 144 effective January 1, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 144 for long-lived assets held for
use to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements because the impairment assessment under SFAS No. 144
is largely unchanged from SFAS No. 121. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 for assets held for sale or other disposal generally
are required to be applied prospectively after the adoption date to newly initiated disposal activities. Therefore, we cannot
determine the potential effects that adoption of SFAS No. 144 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

We consider the various products we design, manufacture and market to form three reportable segments: manipulator/docking
hardware products, temperature management systems and tester interface products. The manipulator and docking hardware
segment includes the operations of our Cherry Hill, New Jersey manufacturing facility as well as the operations of three of our
foreign subsidiaries: inTEST Limited, inTEST Kabushiki Kaisha, and inTEST PTE, Limited. Sales of this segment consist
primarily of manipulator and docking hardware products which we design, manufacture and market, as well as certain other
related products which we design and market, but which are manufactured by third parties. The temperature management
segment includes the operations of Temptronic in Sharon, Massachusetts as well as inTEST GmbH. Sales of this segment
consist primarily of temperature management systems which we design, manufacture and market under our Temptronic product
line. In addition, this segment provides after sale service and support, which is paid for by its customers. The tester interface
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(3) . SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

segment includes the operations of inTEST Sunnyvale Corp. in Sunnyvale, California. Sales of this segment consist primarily
of tester interface products which we design, manufacture and market under our TestDesign product line.

We operaie our business worldwide and all three segments sell their products both domestically and internationally. All three
segments sell to semiconductor manufacturers and ATE manufacturers. .

Intercompany pricing between segments is either a multiple of cost for component parts or a percentage discount from list price

for finished goods.
© Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Net revenues from ungffiliated customers:
Manipulator/Docking HardWare ........c..cccoceveeneninrernneennvserenns $ 19,986 $39,556 $26,423
Temperature Management ..........cccocooviiiiiiinniiensseese s 25,724 33,505 19,089
Tester INETfaCE ...vovveveverereree et st 5917 _14590 __ 8073

51627 $87.651 $53.585

Affiliate sales or transfer from:

Manipulator/Docking Hardware ...........c.c.ocecenvereernnurencsnienenrnanens $ 914 $2087 §$ 2049
Temperature Management .........c.ccoovvceiniiiniennneninonnee e 1,031 <136 506
Tester INterface ......ccvvviiiiciniciiicnrc e 923 1,873 502

$ 2868 $ 4096 $ 3.057

Depreciation/amortization:

Manipulator/Docking Hardware ..........ccocovveveeenncniinnccerennn $ 1,283 $ 1,114 $ 781
Temperature Management ...........ccocovrvienniiiinincecnnn s 518 562 495
TeSter INTEITACE ...cccvuveei et ree e e ae e e s eaes : 381 398 153

Operating income (loss):

Manipulator/Docking Hardware ...........cocvecnrrneniennnnnens e $ (6957) $ 7,677 $ 5477
Temperature Management ........ccoviviviciermniininenncaenons a1 1,801 1,005
Tester INEITACE ...cvvvvie et ett st eeertb e e sesarees (1.015) 1431 845

$(14.689) $10909 $ 7,327

Earnings (loss) before income taxes:

Manipulator/Docking Hardware ..........ccocoeerervveerremeeneecenioninnns $ (6,539) $ 8,319 $ 5,884
Temperature Management ...........ccoveveerirererereerininseseeereeseessesernees (584) 1,830 829
Tester IMEerface .....cciivieiiieenir e sre s rae e (7.015) _ 1.430 845

3(14,138) $11.579 § 7.558

Income tax expense (benefit):

Manipulator/Docking Hardware .........cccoovevveeeeevrmneeeniereiesennenes $(1,988) §$ 2,857 § 2,298
Temperature Management .........cccoevverieriinierineeneesesntene e srne e N 1,738 ,
Tester INEETTACE «.oovvvveviiieeee et ee e er et e s (730) 605

(1,210)
337
$ (2,809) $ 5200 S 1425

Net earnings (loss):

Manipulator/Docking Hardware ..........cccoeverrncvrinnnrenesernsrennnnens $ (4,551) $ 5,461 $ 3,586
Temperature Management ...........c.oocviiivinnnninsioninecns (493) 92 2,039
Tester INterface ....covovvvvireirenci e (6,285) 826 508
‘ $(11.329) $6379 § 6133
Identifiable assets: _
Manipulator/Docking Hardware .......ccoecvvervecevcninniereneneneneennnne $ 17,015 $25,718 $27,206
Temperature Management ..........c.cocovvvniirceenvecnenienien e ersnnnes 11,652 14,661 11,395
Tester INErface ......cooveereeciieieire ettt 3,101 6,923 4414

$31.768 347302 $43.015

We do not currently allocate corporate overhead to our subsidiaries. All costs associated with our executive management team are
charged to the Cherry Hill, New Jersey operation which is included in the manipulator/docking hardware segment. The $4,612 charge
for impairment of goodwill in 2001 was incurred by the tester interface segment, the $2,672 of merger-related costs in 2000 were
incurred by the temperature management segment, and the $415 write-off of deferred offering costs in 2000 was incurred by the
manipulator/docking hardware segment. Substantially all interest income is generated by our three Delaware holding companies,
whose resuits are also included in the manipulator/docking hardware segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Export sales from our domestic manufacturing facilities (New Jersey, California and Massachusetts) totaled $2,009, $22,983
and $16,280 during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. During the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, we had sales to Japan of $5,345, $10,134 and $5,737, respectively. Our foreign subsidiaries generated
$6,959, $13,707 and $8,522 of net revenues in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Agilent Technologies accounted for 15% of our consolidated net revences in 2001, No customer accounted for more than
10% of our consolidated net revenues in 2000 or 1999.

INVENTORIES

Inventories held at December 31 were comprised of the following:

2001 - 2000
RaW MAtErials cvvvireiiiiiii ittt ceetraraen e e s s aates $3.960 $ 7,160
Work in process......ccocevevereneias et s 2,362 3,785
Finished g00dS......ccoovirieiiiiiniieeininnee e bt s s sannes 1,232 _1.614
$7.554 $12.559
DEBT
Line of Credit

As of December 31, 2001, we have a $5,000 committed, unsecured line of credit of which $4,800 was available to borrow (the
$5,000 committed amount less $200 in letters of credit we have issued to third parties under this line). Borrowings under this
line of credit are principally used for working capital purposes. Borrowings on the line of credit bear interest at either the prime
rate minus }.0% or the Euro-rate plus 1.5%, which is payable monthly on any cutstanding balance. The Company is required to
maintain a $50 compensating balance at the bank which granted the line of credit. At December 31, 2001, there were no .
borrowings outstanding. This line of credit is due to expire September 30, 2002. :

We are currently negotiating with the bank which issued this line of credit to modify this facility to extend the maturity for a
period of two years. We expect that the amended agreement will provide for the granting of a security interest in most of our

domestic assets and the addition of certain negative covenants.

Letter of Credit

We have an outstanding letter of credit in the amount of $200 as of December 31, 2001. This letter of credit was issued as a
security deposit under a lease which our Temptronic subsidiary entered into for its new facility in Sharon, Massachuseits.

Capital Lease Obligations

On January 31, 2001, we entered into two capital lease agreements to finance equipment purchases. The minimum lease
payments under the capital leases in effect at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

2002 .t e ket e e s e $105
2003 e bbb et ns 105
2004 ..ot b et es et et b s ettt a e naeaee 105
2005 e e et st e r e e b e ents 104
2000 ...citirere ettt et e s e e b e e s abt R ne st e en s n bt _17
Total minimum 1€aSe PAYMENLS .....cveerevvioiiiieiiii i s 436

Less: Amount representing iMErESt ....c.ovreviiiiiineiiiiiniinnieniicesessscesiennen. _59
Present value of minimum lease payments ..., 377

Less: Current installments under capital leases _ 81
Obligations under capital lease, excluding current installments .................... $296
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STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Plan (the "Plan") provides for the granting of either incentive stock options or non-
qualified stock options to purchase shares of our common stock and for other stock-based awards to key employees and
directors responsible for our direction and management and to non-employee consultants. The Plan consists of two parts: the
Non-Qualified Plan (administered by our Board of Directors) and the Key Employee Plan (administered by the Compensation
Committee of our Board of Directors). We have reserved 1,100,000 shares of common stock for issuance upon exercise of
options or stock awards under the Plan.

No option may be granted with an exercise period in excess of ten years from the date of grant. Generaily, incentive stock
options will be granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of grant; the exercise price of non-
qualified stock options will be determined by either the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. The options which have been issued under the Plan generally vest 20% one year from date of grant and 20% in each
of the succeeding four years. '

In connection with the merger with Temptronic, outstanding incentive and non-qualified stock options to acquire Temptronic
common stock were converted into 175,686 stock options to acquire our stock at a conversion ratio of 0.925, with appropriate
adjustment to the exercise price. These stock options, which were issued outside of the Plan, generally vest over four to five
years. : '

As discussed in Note 2, we have elected to continue to follow APB 25 in accounting for our stock option plans. Under APB 25,
we do not recognize compensation expense on the issuance of stock options to employees and non-employee directors when the
option terms are fixed and the exercise price equals the fair value of the underlying stock on the grant date. Prior to the merger,
Temptronic had granted certain non-qualified stock options to employees which had an exercise price below the estimated fair
value of Temptronic's common stock at the date of grant. For these options, compensation cost, equaling the difference between
the fair market value of the underlying stock and the cost to exercise the options, was recorded as deferred compensation at the
date of grant. This cost is amortized to expense as the options vest. Total compensation cost recognized for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $58, $41, $75, respectively.

Had compensation costs for our stock-based compensation plans been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, our net
earnings (loss) and net earnings (loss) per common share for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 would have
been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2601 2000 1999
Net earnings (loss):
AS TEPOTTEA ... vreivec ettt ettt e st $(11,329) $6,379 $6,133
Pro forma ..o $(11,808) $5.416 $5,988
Net earnings (loss) per common share -- basic:
AS TEPOTIEA....vvieivir ettt e r e $(1.37) $0.78 $0.76
PIO O ..ottt $(143) $0.66 $0.74
Net earnings (loss) per common share -- diluted:
AS TEPOTTEA.o..veeeriierreerceeee sttt st be st seees $(1.37) $0.75 $0.74
Pro forma ..cocoovevvieien e $(1.43y $0.64 S$0.72

The fair value for stock options granted in 2001 and 2000 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions {no options were granted in 1999):

2001 2009
RiSK-free INterest Tae.......vvoveuereiereririeerririeteee et sras e s enase s et s 440% 4.99%
Dividend yield ...t 0.00% 0.00%
Expected common stock market price volatility factor ......ccevvmevernnnnnn. 1.01 82
Weighted average expected life of stock options ........ccoveererveirnenenienes S years 5 years

The per share weighted average fair value of stock options issued in 2001 and 2000 was $2.91 and $8.92, respectively.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no

vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. As our stock options have characteristics significantly different from
those of traded options, and as changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in
management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of our stock
options.
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(7} STOCK OPTION PLAN (Continued)

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the three years ended December 31, 2001:

Weighted

Average

Number Exercise

of Shares Price

Options outstanding, January 1, 1999 (215,637 exercisable)............. e re——— 585,691 $ 3.9}
Granted .....o..oeevvvierreeeereeerereresseseeene ettt ee e nenees v - -
EXEICISEA. oot iiciiriret ettt eee s e s s s s s b et et eseser et b aseseesseereasreaann (33,138) 10
CaANCEIE. ... ettt et ettt e sbe et beaanne (79.598) 3.40
Options outstanding, December 31, 1999 (202,464 exercisable)............cco.even.... 472,955 4.26
GTANIEA 1.evovveverteiire et et r et et bt es e e s besbasbaesbesassare s snersesbeeberneaseensennns 642,000 13.08
Exercised........... et oottt h e s et ee At b st et nanens (83,088) 2,70
O 111 1=« SO OO PSS (6,865) 14.76
Options outstanding, December 31, 2000 (196,386 exercisable)........cccoereeeeeeee 1,025,002 9.84
GIANTEA ..oeeviie ettt eae e sre e st e s bt s ebesaeseabe et beerbeerneerbesaeeereersaennnes 361,000 5.81
EXEICISE. o e ovveeieeitre vt iitcecrrere e st esteents vt eteetvectbeenesatesrbesesesassersessaesrnssrnessnanns (34,674) 291
“Canceled.......ccouvereenee RO PO OO U IO S TP (329.403) 14.20
Options outstanding, December 31, 2001 (386,930 exercisable).......c..coccecenniiee 1,021,925 $ 6.62

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Excercise Exercise
Number Weighted - Price of : Number Price of
Range of Qutstanding at Average QOutstanding Exercisable at Exercisable
Exercise Prices  December 31, 2001  Remaining Life Options December 31, 2001 Options
$0.02 5,550 5.50 years $0.02 -- $0.02
$2.99 - $3.35 287,500 9.86 years $3.20 41,875 $3.35
$3.79 - $4.44 160,775 ~ 5.77 years $4.17 ' 109,575 $4.13
$6.00 - $6.75 161,100 - 6.21 years $6.13 106,080 $6.00
$9.56 - $12.69 407,000 8.63 years $10.28 129,400 $11.17

& COMMITMENTS
We lease our offices, warehouse facilities, automobiles and certain equipment under noncancellable operating leases which
‘expire at various dates through 2011. Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $2,241,
$1,696 and $1,227, respectively.

The aggregate minimum rental commitments under the noncancellable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2001, are as

follows: :
2002 - $1,895
2003 $1,814
2004 $1,708
2005 : $1,325
2006 $1,266
Thereafter $4,979
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® INCOME TAXES

We are subject to Federal and certain state income taxes. In addition, we are taxed in certain foreign countries. The
cumulative amount of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries for which U.S. income taxes have not been provided was
approximately $3,685 and $4,825 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Total income tax expense (benefit) was allocated as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
) 2001 T 2000 1929
Income (10ss) from OPErations . ..cveervieiiiririer et re e esene $(2,809) $5,200 $1,425
Stockholders' equity, for tax benefit derived from
exercise and sale of stock option Shares........cocoeieiiive, (22) (454) -

$(2.831) $4.746 $1.425

Earnings (loss) before income taxes were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
DDOMIESTIC uvvvieeeeeieiteieree s st e e e s e tveeete e e staeear e e sebesbeeestaesaneessteseansestbasnanesstbasnons $(13,618) $ 8,511 $5,949
FOTQIGI vttt s ek s e nansrere e en e (520) 3,068 _1.609

14,138) $11.579 $7.558

Income tax expense (benefit) was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Current
DomMeStic — FEAETAl ....oouveeeereeeeeeeeeeeee et reeserae s $(2,585) $3,922  $1,934
DOMESLIC = SLALE.....eccveerererererrieieesreesreeeneeneresreeseeesesnrens (69) 165 215
FOTRIZN ...ccvviiirerie ettt ettt e saee e (83) 889 652
(2,737) 5076 2,801
Deferred:
Domestic — Federal........ccccovvvvvniiiivinciiiic e (143) (171) (946)
DOMESHC — STALE...eveeveeereriitreeeeiesreeerer s cveeere e steeeraeens 71 295 (430
' (72) __ 124 (1.376)
Income tax expense (Denefit) .........ccvvvvvreveecreceereerereneecnieens $(2.809) $5.200 $1.425

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of net operating loss and credit carryforwards and temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. The following is a summary of the significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December
31,2001 and 20C0:




inTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

@) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

December 31,

2001 2000

Deferred tax assets: ‘
Accrued VACALION PAY ....eveverririririrececieteteinne e rere s rerebebesesesensasens $ 180 $ 264
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNTS .....coecererriiniireerire e 47 69
INVENLOTIES.....eoeieicireiiictiet et sttt bbbt bt 949 609
ACCTUEd WATTANLY ..ottt 171 143
ACCTUE DOMUSES .....oveiviieiietie ettt sre et see e nes 141 271
Net operating loss and credit carryforward ..........coeeevereisirenrensironnseinens 90 90
Stock COMPENSALION .eicviiiiiieniiiiiiie s 62 90
Property and eqUIPIMENT ......c..cccoceciiiiniiiiiinic e 56 120
OHHET ettt st ettt vt e es e e st be s b e 66 57
1,762 1,713
Valuation QlIOWANCE.........coccviiririerieirie ettt s e st en b e seste e sene (178) (80
Deferred tax @SSELS ..ooeioveiriiiiieie st 1,584 1,623
Deferred tax liabilities: .
Accrued royalty INCOME ........o..oieeiierieiicnreese e errce e e erenie e (15) (126)
Deferred tax Habilities......coeiiveriiirirsieieeecri e reene oo rae s s sree e nne 135 (126)
Net deferred taX @SSEL....ccvviviiiiieiriiiiineeie st s 1,56 1,497

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of the beginning of 2001 and 2000 was $90 and $90, respectively. The net
change in the valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 was an increase of $88 and $0,
respectively. In assessing the ability to realize the deferred tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The uitimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. We consider the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. In order to fully realize the total deferred tax assets, we will need to generate future taxable income prior to the
expiration of net operating loss and credit carryforwards which expire in various years through 2019. Based upon the level of

_ historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences are
deductible, we believe it is more likely than not that we will realize the benefit of the deferred tax asset, net of the valuation
allowance, at December 31, 2001. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the
near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced. :

An analysis of the effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and a reconciliation from the
expected statutory rate of 34%, 35% and 34%, respectively, are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2800 1999
Expected income tax provision at U.S. Statutory rate .........c.ceevvvivrveeererecrnencnns $(4,807) $4,053 $2,570
State taxes, net of Federal benefit ..........cccccoeiiiiiniiininncice e, 1 299 157
Increase (decrease) in tax from: _
Non-deductible merger-related COStS........ooiiiieriiriiieni e, - 815 -
Liquidation of life insurance poliCies ..........cccoerimerieercennniceeeereesene - 83 -
Non-deductible goodwill and other permanent differences.................. v 1,913 69 28
Foreign income tax rate differences ........c.coceoeeeiinc i, 92 (85) 58
Federal Credits .oviiiiiiiiiii et e e sebe e e - - 51
Change in valuation allowance related to Federal.......c.ccccvvinniiinnniinnnnenne. - - (1,418)
L0131 OO OSSPSR SO U T POPPRO ® (34 81
Income tax expense (benefit) ... $(2.809) $5200 $1.425
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NOTES TO CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data) -

10y EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

(1)

(12)

We have a defined contribution 401(k) plan for our employees who work in the U.S. All permanent employees of inTEST
Corporation and inTEST Sunnyvale Corp. who are at least 18 years of age are eligible to participate in the plan. During the first
quarter of 2001 and the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, we matched employee contributions dollar for dollar up to
10% of the employee's annual compensation up to $5. Effective April 1, 2001, the 401(k) plan maiching contributions were
temporarily suspended due to our cost containment efforts. Future matching contributions are discretionary. Employer
contributions vest over a six-year period. We contributed $77, $299 and $221 to the plan for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Temptronic adopted a defined contribution 401 (k) plan for its domestic employees in 1988. All permanent emiployees who are
at least 21 years of age are eligible to participate in the plan. Under the plan, Temptronic may make discretionary matching
contributions to be determined annually by Temptronic up to 6% of the employees’ annual compensation. Effective October 1,
2001, the 401(k) plan matching contributions were temporarily suspended due to our cost containment efforts. Employer
contributions vest over a seven-year period. Temptronic contributed $176, $74 and $56 to the plan for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Temptronic established the EPP covering substantially all employees in 1982. On November 6, 1996, in exchange for a note
receivable, Temptronic loaned the EPP $3,668 to purchase 565,483 shares of stock from certain former stockholders of
Temptronic. We agreed to make an annual contribution to the. EPP in the amount of the principal plus interest due on the note
receivable. This note receivable bore interest at 10% and was scheduled to mature on September 30, 2011. A portion of the total
shares acquired with the proceeds of the note were allocated to participant accounts on September 30 of each plan year as the
note receivable was repaid. The original amount of the note from the EPP was recorded as a reduction of stockholders' equity.
The reduction in stockholders' equity was offset when the annual contributions were made.

Cn July 2, 2001, the EPP was terminated. Upon termination, the 375,982 remaining unallocated shares were returned to us in
satisfaction of the remaining unpaid principal amount of the note at that tiime. These shares have been recorded as treasury
stock in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Based on a stock price of $6.18 on July 2, 2001, the value of the
unallocated shares returned to us was approximately $604 less than the remaining principal of the note receivable as of that
date. This difference was recorded as a reduction of additional paid in capital. We have filed an application for a favorable
determination with respect to the termination of the EPP with the Internal Revenue Service. This determination, when received,
will have no impact on the accounting for the termination of the EPP.

ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

2001 2000
AcCCrued COMPENSALION ...c.e.viirieteiei vt rererceeraiesierasesearereseresasersrereseesasenes $ 958 $1,630
AcCrued WAaTTANLY COSIS .vvviitiriiitiiriee ettt ettt enretss e e s e sbesresanerassrenns 451 367
ACCTUEd COMMUSSIONS ...vervenreririieicririete et ret e rte et sr et e seseeeeseseesseneennons 306 870
Accrued professional f8€S .........covveiriiieeeieriecni et 145 166
Accrued merger-related COStS......oovenennnn bbbt e es - 239
ACCTUE OhET ...ttt sttt ere e 240 296

2,100 $3.568

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We paid consulting fees which totaled $94, $59 and $67 during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively, to one individual who is a member of our Board of Directors. We paid consulting fees to one individual who is
one of our executive officers (prior to his employment as an executive officer) totaling $44 in 2001.

Some of our foreign subsidiaries paid directors' fees to individuals who are our executive officers which totaled $85, $113 and
$119 during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. ‘
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InTEST CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Temptronic has transactions in the normal course of business with Hakuto Co. Ltd. As of December 31, 2001, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hakuto Co. Ltd., Hakuto America Holdings, Inc., owned 647,500 shares of our outstanding stock. During the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, Tempironic sold product at market prices totaling approximately $2,674,
$1,469 and $1,510, respectively, to Hakuto Co. Ltd. At December 31, 2001 and 2000 accounts receivable from Hakuto Co.
Ltd. amounted to approximately $182 and $351, respectively.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we are a party to legal proceedings. We are not currently involved in any legal proceedings the resolution of
which could have a material effect on our business, our financial position or our results of operations. On December 15, 2000,
however, we filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware against Credence Systems Corporation
claiming infringemenit of our U.S. patent number 4,589,815 and seeking damages and injunctive relief. Since that time, we
comimenced the process of discovery, which process is ongoing, and through which we will quantify our damages. We do not
believe that this action will have a material effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

The following tables present certain unaudited consolidated quarterly financial information for each of the eight quarters ended
December 31, 2001. In our opinion, this quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial
statements and includes all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the
information for the periods presented. The results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for the
full year or for any future period.

Our business is not seasonal; therefore year-over-year quarterly comparisons of our results of operations may not be as
meaningful as the sequential quarterly comparisons set forth below which tend to reflect the cyclical activity of the
semiconductor industry as a whole. Quarterly fluctuations in expenses are related directly to sales activity and volume and may
also reflect the timing of operating expenses incurred throughout the year.

Quarters Ended
. 3/31/0% 6/30/01 930/01  12/31/01 Total
N TEVENUES. ... vttt ettt et et sae s sees $20,105 $16,675 $ 7,428 $ 7,419 $51,627
GIOSS MATZIN c.eeevveriiiieieeie ettt sttt 7,963 5,532 (1,747) 963 12,711
Earnings (loss) before income taxes........cooeveeervvererineineanns 1,441 42 " (12,184) (3,437) (14,138)
Income tax expense (benefit) ........coevevevereieeiinierererennans 583 78 (2,360) (1,110)  (2,809)
Net earnings (loss) TP 858 36) 9,824) (2,327) (11,329
Net earnings (loss) per common share — basic................. $0.10 $0.00 $(1.19) $(0.28)  $(1.37)
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic... 8252139 8265932 8289634 8308982  8279,356
Net earnings (loss) per common share — diluted .............. $0.10 $0.00 $(1.19) $(0.28) $(1.37)

Weighted average common shares and common share

equivalents outstanding — diluted..........c.c.coovieninenn. 8411240 8265932 8289634 8308982 8279356

Quarters Ended

~ 3/31/00 6/30/00 9/30/00  12/31/00 Total
N TEVEIMUES .. eeeeeeeee e eeeeee ettt e e e e re e v s $20,254 $21,317 $24,491 '3$21,589 $87,651
GrOSS MATZIN .cuveieivieeiererieieere e sieree e ste et e b avesrene 9,975 10,506 11,261 7,814 39,556
Earnings before inCome taxes .......occevvvvreereervivieeneenanennne 2,277 4,354 4,186 762 11,579
TNCOME tAXES cnniiirieer i s e bataea s 1,799 1,560 1,552 289 5,200
INEt CAMMINGES ..o oo 478 2,794 2,634 473 6,379
Net earnings per common share — basiC........cccoeceeveninennne $0.06 $0.34 $0.32 $0.06 $0.78
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic ...... 8,137,167 8,190,178 8232003 8243928 8,201,029
Net earnings per common share — diluted..........c.oocveveennnns $0.06 $0.33 $0.31 $0.06 $0.75
Weighted average common shares and common share ™

equivalents outstanding — diluted..............ccccoveinneinines 8465603 8,528,166 8475730 8424901 8469910




iInTEST CORPORATION
SCHEDULE I1 -- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
‘ (in thousands) ‘

Balance at Balance at
Beginning Expense End of
of Period (Recovery) Deductions Period

Year Ended December 31, 1999
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........cccccveervecreciniiie e, $ 221 $ 16 $ @ $ 239
WAITADLY TESEIVE .ooveveieeieiisieiiiatesseseeeaesrsresrsaseasseseessesrerneas 160 790 662 228

Year Ended December 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts .......coccooevveveiiiieicenriciee, 239 31 29 241
WATTANLY TESETVE 1..enriiieeeententenianin e rerieestestrsresenaaseseeneessenans 228 1,102 963 367

Year Ended December 31, 2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........cccecvveeveeerriivecrereeenn, 241 (104) 12 125
WaITANLY TESEIVE ...coirreieeiereentiriesrrnerenesseesraeseesnanesessesneseenen 367 1,044 960 451
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Form §0-K
A copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, is included
herein. Additional copies may be obtained without charge
(exclusive of exhibits) upon written request to:

Investor Relations

inTEST Corporation

7 Esterbrook Lane

Cherry Hill, NJ 08003

Awwua Stocnowers” feenne

Our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held
at 10:00 A.M. Eastern Daylight Time on Wednesday,
June 12, 2002, at our offices, 7 Esterbrook Lane,
Cherry Hill, NJ 08003.
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